Fund name reference table

This table is included to assist you in locating the funds you have invested in. This will enable you to match the name as shown in your annual
statement or information folder and the legal name of the fund as shown in these financial statements.

Common name

Funds managed by Portfolio Solutions Group,
a division of Canada Life Investment Management Ltd.

Asset allocation funds

Advanced Allocation

Aggressive Allocation

Balanced Allocation

Conservative Allocation

Diversified Fixed Income Allocation
Moderate Allocation

Income allocation funds
Income Focus

Income Growth

Income Growth Plus

Managed fund solutions

Balanced Income

Core Balanced

Core Balanced Growth Plus

Core Conservative Growth

Core Moderate

Core Moderate Growth Plus

Fidelity Balanced

Fidelity Moderate Growth Plus
Fidelity Moderate Income

Franklin Templeton Balanced Income
Franklin Templeton Moderate Growth
Franklin Templeton Moderate Income
Index ETF Balanced Portfolio

Index ETF Conservative Portfolio
Index ETF Growth Portfolio
Mackenzie Balanced

Mackenzie Balanced Income
Mackenzie Moderate Growth
Mackenzie Moderate Income

Funds managed by The Canada Life Assurance Company

Long Term Bond
Real Return Bond

Funds managed by Canada Life Investment Management Ltd.

Canadian Concentrated Equity
Canadian Core Plus Bond
Canadian Dividend

Canadian Focused Growth
Canadian Focused Growth I
Canadian Growth

Diversified Real Assets

Emerging Markets Concentrated Equity

Emerging Markets Large Cap Equity
ESG U.S. Equity

Floating Rate Income

Foreign Equity

Global Balanced

Global Core Plus Bond

Global Growth Opportunities
Global Multi-Sector Bond

Global Resources

Global Small-Mid Cap Growth
Global Tactical

International Concentrated Equity
International Equity Il

Legal name

Advanced Allocation Fund S-629
Aggressive Allocation Fund S-630

Balanced Allocation Fund S-628
Conservative Allocation Fund S-626
Diversified Fixed Income Fund (PSG) SF824
Moderate Allocation Fund S-627

Income Focus Fund SF631
Income Growth Fund SF632
Income Growth Plus Fund SF633

Balanced Income Fund (CI) SF800

Core Balanced Fund SF801

Core Balanced Growth Plus Fund SF802

Core Conservative Growth Fund SF803

Core Moderate Fund SF804

Core Moderate Growth Plus Fund SF805

Balanced Fund (Fidelity) SF806

Moderate Growth Plus Fund (Fidelity) SF807
Moderate Income Fund (Fidelity) SF808

Balanced Income Fund (Franklin Templeton) SF809
Moderate Growth Fund (Franklin Templeton) SF810
Moderate Income Fund (Franklin Templeton) SF811
Index ETF Balanced Portfolio Fund 2.00PSG

Index ETF Conservative Portfolio Fund 1.99PSG
Index ETF Growth Portfolio Fund 2.01PSG
Balanced Fund (Mackenzie) SF812

Balanced Income Fund (Mackenzie) SF813
Moderate Growth Fund (Mackenzie) SF814
Moderate Income Fund (Mackenzie) SF815

Long Term Bond Fund (PIM) SF818
Real Return Bond Fund (PIM) SF820

Pathways Canadian Concentrated Equity Fund (Galibier) SF544
Pathways Core Plus Bond Fund (Mackenzie) SF540

Dividend Fund (Mackenzie) SF565

Canadian Equity Growth Fund S-102MF

Harbour Canadian Fund (Cl) SF175

Pathways Canadian Equity Fund (GWLIM) SF543

Canada Life Diversified Real Assets Fund 2.40CS

Pathways Emerging Markets Equity Fund (Northcape) SF550
Pathways Emerging Markets Large Cap Equity Fund (Mackenzie) SF549
ESG U.S. Equity Fund 2.37JPM

Floating Rate Income Fund (MF) SF526

Ivy Foreign Equity Fund (Mackenzie) SF564

Global Balanced Fund (Mackenzie) SF513

Pathways Global Core Plus Bond Fund (Mackenzie) SF541
Global Future Fund S-183MF

Pathways Global Multi Sector Bond Fund (Brandywine) SF542
Canadian Resource Fund S-348MF

Global Small-Mid Cap Growth Fund 2.39MI

Pathways Global Tactical Fund (ILIM) SF551

Pathways International Concentrated Equity Fund (C WorldWide) SF548
International Equity Fund (Cl) SF182



Common name

Funds managed by Canada Life Investment Management Ltd.
International Value

Strategic Income

Sustainable Balanced Portfolio
Sustainable Conservative Portfolio
Sustainable Emerging Markets Equity
Sustainable Global Equity
Sustainable Growth Portfolio

U.S. All Cap Growth

U.S. Concentrated Equity

U.S. Value

Funds managed by GWL Realty Advisors Inc.
Real Estate

Funds managed by AGF Investments Inc.
American Growth
Canadian Small Cap Growth

Funds managed by Beutel, Goodman & Company Ltd.
American Value

Canadian Focused Value

Canadian Value Balanced

Global Founders

Global Value Balanced

Funds managed by Canada Life Asset Management Limited
Far East Equity
International Bond

Funds managed by Capital Group
Global Equity

Funds managed by Cranston, Gaskin, O'Reilly & Vernon
Canadian Focused Value Stock

Funds managed by Fidelity Investments Canada ULC
Fidelity American Disciplined Equity®

Fidelity Global Balanced Portfolio

Fidelity Global Equity

Fidelity Global Income Portfolio

Fidelity NorthStar®

Fidelity NorthStar® Balanced

Fidelity True North®

Funds managed by Franklin Templeton Investments Corp.
Canadian Small Cap

Canadian Stock

EAFE Stock

Funds managed by Invesco Canada Ltd.
All World Equity

Canadian Focused Premier Growth
Canadian Premier Balanced

Funds managed by Irish Life Investment Managers Limited (ILIM)

Global Low Volatility

Risk-Managed Balanced Portfolio
Risk-Managed Conservative Income Portfolio
Risk-Managed Growth Portfolio

Funds managed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management
International Equity
International Growth

Legal name

Pathways International Equity Fund (Setanta) SF547
Maxxum Canadian Balanced Fund (Mackenzie) SF519
Balanced Fund (Bissett) SF104

Canadian Growth & Income Fund (AGF) SF249
Sustainable Emerging Markets Equity Fund 2.36JPM
Sustainable Global Equity Fund 2.35JPM

Harbour Growth & Income Fund (CI) SF190

U.S. Growth Leaders Fund S-286MF

Pathways U.S. Concentrated Equity Fund (Aristotle) SF546
Pathways U.S. Equity Fund (Putnam) SF545

Real Estate Fund (GWLRA) SF353

American Growth Fund (AGF) SF247
Canadian Equity Fund (AGF) SF101

American Equity Fund (BG) SF562
Canadian Equity Fund (BG) SF553
Balanced Fund (BG) SF552

Global Founders Fund 1.00BG
Global Value Balanced Fund 1.01BG

International Bond Fund (Laketon) SF036
Far East Equity Fund S-038MF

Global Equity Fund 1.08CG

Canadian Equity Fund (Trimark) SF052

American Disciplined Equity Fund (Fidelity) SF356
Global Balanced Portfolio Fund 1.04FID
International Portfolio Fund (Fidelity) SF184
Global Income Portfolio Fund 1.03FID

Northstar Fund (Fidelity) SF355

Canadian Asset Allocation Fund (Fidelity) SF191
True North Fund (Fidelity) SF176

Small Cap Equity Fund (Bissett) SF105
Canadian Equity Fund (Bissett) SF103
International Equity Fund (Templeton) SF118

Global Equity Fund (Trimark) SF051
Canadian Growth Fund (AIM) SF289
Balanced Fund (Trimark) SF054

Global Low Vol Fund (ILIM) SF561

Risk-Managed Balanced Portfolio Fund 1.22IL
Risk-Managed Conservative Income Portfolio Fund 1.21IL
Risk-Managed Growth Portfolio Fund 1.23IL

International Equity Fund (JPM) SF555
International Opportunity Fund (JPM) SF556



Common name

Funds managed by Mackenzie Investments
Canadian All Cap Equity

Canadian Core Bond

Canadian Core Dividend

Canadian Core Plus Bond Il
Canadian Corporate Bond
Canadian Equity

Canadian Equity Value

Canadian Equity Value Il

Canadian Fixed Income Balanced
Canadian Fixed Income Balanced Il
Canadian Focused Dividend
Canadian Growth Balanced
Canadian Growth Balanced Il
Canadian Low Volatility

Canadian Small-Mid Cap

Canadian Stock Balanced
Canadian Tactical Bond

Emerging Markets Equity

Global Growth Opportunities Balanced
Global Infrastructure

Global Strategic Income

Global Value Stock

Government Bond

Money Market

North American High Yield Fixed Income
Science and Technology
Short-Term Bond

Strategic Income Il

Strategic Income lI

Strategic Income IV

U.S. Dividend

U.S. Growth

U.S. Mid Cap Growth

U.S. Value Stock

Unconstrained Fixed Income

Funds managed by Putnam Investments Canada ULC
EAFE Equity
U.S. Low Volatility

Funds managed by Setanta Asset Management Limited
European Equity

Global All Cap Equity

Global Dividend

Funds managed by TD Asset Management Inc.
Canadian Neutral Balanced
Indexed Canadian Bond

Funds managed by T Rowe Price (Canada), Inc.
Global Growth Balanced

Global Growth Equity

Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income

Legal name

Canadian Equity Fund (Howson Tattersall) SF177
Core Bond Fund (PIM) SF531

Enhanced Dividend Fund (Laketon) SF039

Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

Corporate Bond Fund (PIM) SF817

Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
Canadian Equity Fund S-285LL

Canadian Equity Value Fund S-347C

Income Opportunity Fund (LLIM) SF354

Sentinel Income Fund (Mackenzie) SF521
Dividend Fund S-189LL

Equity/Bond Fund (GLC) SF825

Saxon Balanced Fund (Mackenzie) SF520
Canadian Low Vol Equity Fund (LC) SF554

Mid Cap Canada Fund S-346G

Ilvy Canadian Balanced Fund (Mackenzie) SF563
Tactical Bond Fund (PIM) SF558

Emerging Markets Fund (Mackenzie) SF532
Global Growth Balanced Fund 1.02MAC

Global Infrastructure Equity Fund (London Capital) SF515
Global Monthly Income Fund (L) SF822

Global Value Fund (Mackenzie) SF514
Government Bond Fund S-167G

Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029

North American High Yield Bond Fund (MF) SF819
Science & Technology Fund (LC) SF557

Short Term Bond Fund (PIM) SF816

Managed Fund (Laketon) SF035

Diversified Fund (GLC) SF823

Monthly Income Fund (L) SF821

U.S. Dividend Fund (GWLIM) SF522

U.S. Equity Fund (LC) SF559

U.S. Mid Cap Equity Fund (LC) SF560

U.S. Value Fund S-178LL

Global Unconstrained Fund (Mackenzie) SF530

International Equity Fund (P) SF529
U.S. Low Volatility Fund (P) SF527

European Equity Fund S-037ST
Global Equity Fund SF034
Global Dividend Fund (SAM) SF528

Balanced Fund (Greystone) SF208
Indexed Canadian Bond Fund (TDQC) SF079

Global Growth Balanced Fund 1.05TRP
Global Growth Equity Fund 1.07TRP
Global Multi-Sector Bond Fund 1.06 TRP
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Deloitte LLP

-
360 Main Street
eloltie.

Winnipeg MB R3C 323
Canada

Tel: 204-942-0051
Fax: 204-947-9390
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Contractholders of Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009 (the “Fund”)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to contractholders and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS”) and the
requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Guideline G2.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“"Canadian
GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance
Association Guideline G2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.


http://www.deloitte.ca

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

/s/ Deloitte LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
March 14, 2024



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Fund Manager: Mackenzie Investments

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income
December 31 December 31 For the years ended December 31 December 31
2023 2022 2023 2022
Assets Income
Cash and short-term deposits $ 774§ 6,655 Net gain (loss) on investments  $ 21,378 $ (9,770)
Investment income due and Miscellaneous income (loss) 333 25
accrued 336 432 )
. Total income (loss) 21,711 (9,745)
Due from The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 7) — 68
Expenses

Due from brok.ers . 893 - Management fees (note 7) 2,219 2,318
Due from outside parties - - Transaction costs 136 67
Investments Withholding taxes 12 9

Bonds — — Other 212 220

Stocks 210,089 189,635 Total expenses 2,579 2,614

Investment fund units — —

Net increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations

Total investments 210.089 189635 attributable to contractholders $ 19,132 §$ (12,359)
Total assets $ 212,092 § 196,790 Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable
to Contractholders
For the years ended December 31 December 31
Liabilities 2023 2022
Net assets attributable to
Overdrafts $ - 3 - contractholders - beginning
Due to The Canada Life of year $ 196,790 $ 206,038
Assurance Company (note 7) 64 - Contractholder deposits 12,645 18,734
Due to brokers - - Contractholder withdrawals (16,539) (15,623)

Due to outside parties - - Increase (decrease) in net

assets from operations

Total liabilities excluding net attributable to contractholders 19,132 (12,359)
assets attributable to X
contractholders 64 — Change in net assets

attributable to contractholders 15,238 (9,248)
Net assets attributable to Net assets attributable to

contractholders $ 212,028 $ 196,790 contractholders - end of year $ 212,028 $ 196,790




Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to the Following Activities

Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders
Adjustments
Realized (gains) losses
Unrealized (gains) losses
Gross proceeds of disposition of investments
Gross payments for the purchase of investments
Change in investment income due and accrued
Change in due from/to The Canada Life Assurance Company
Change in due from/to brokers
Change in due from/to outside parties

Financing Activities
Contractholder deposits
Contractholder withdrawals

Net increase (decrease) in cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts
Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, beginning of year

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, end of year

Supplementary cash flow information
Dividend income received

2023 2022
19,132 $ (12,359)
(12,741) (8,884)
(2,640) 24,057
142,203 53,395
(147,276) (54,958)
96 (36)

132 (112)
(893) —
(1,987) 1,103
12,645 18,734
(16,539) (15,623)
(3,894) 3,111
(5,881) 4,214
6,655 2,441
774 $ 6,655
5936 $ 5,289



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Common Stock
Communication Services
Rogers Communications Inc. Class B non-voting 51,981 3,514 3,224
TELUS Corp. 83,790 2,296 1,976
Consumer Discretionary
Avritzia Inc. 27,383 674 753
BRP Inc. 9,648 1,056 915
Dollarama Inc. 39,798 1,810 3,800
Pet Valu Holdings Ltd. 33,072 1,018 952
Consumer Staples
Alimentation Couche-Tard Inc. 69,893 4,592 5,454
Loblaw Companies Ltd. 34,486 4,072 4,424
Energy
AltaGas Ltd. 110,809 2,752 3,083
ARC Resources Ltd. 194,278 3,699 3,821
Canadian Natural Resources Ltd. 98,602 4,044 8,560
Cenovus Energy Inc. 144,695 2,381 3,195
Enbridge Inc. 109,766 5,181 5,236
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 79,322 3,281 3,619
Tourmaline Oil Corp. 60,424 4,348 3,601
Financials
Bank of Montreal 79,085 10,086 10,369
Brookfield Corp. 101,537 3,974 5,397
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd. sub. voting 3,332 3,710 4,073
iA Financial Corp. Inc. 27,970 2,544 2,527
Intact Financial Corp. 25,500 4,967 5,198
National Bank of Canada 37,622 3,710 3,800
Royal Bank of Canada 121,011 10,299 16,214
Sun Life Financial Inc. 29,018 1,499 1,994
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 163,530 10,294 14,000
Thomson Reuters Corp. 10,276 1,789 1,991
TMX Group Ltd. 50,992 1,474 1,634
Industrials

Boyd Group Services Inc. 11,852 2,947 3,301



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value
Canadian Common Stock (continued)
Industrials (continued)
Canadian National Railway Co. 38,231
Canadian Pacific Kansas City Ltd. 75,989
Finning International Inc. 23,270
RB Global Inc. 17,659
Stantec Inc. 25,525
TFI International Inc. 8,284
Toromont Industries Ltd. 12,325
Waste Connections Inc. 20,120
WSP Global Inc. 13,134
Information Technology
CGI Group Inc. Class A sub. voting 30,268
Constellation Software Inc. 1,964
Kinaxis Inc. 6,671
Shopify Inc. 63,013
The Descartes Systems Group Inc. 13,772
Materials
Agnico Eagle Mines Ltd. 44,806
CCL Industries Inc. Class B non-voting 25,929
Franco-Nevada Corp. 17,760
Nutrien Ltd. 35,030
Stella-Jones Inc. 17,948
Teck Resources Ltd. Class B 75,658
Wheaton Precious Metals Corp. 51,495
Real Estate
Canadian Apartment Properties REIT 44 247
Colliers International Group Inc. 12,566
FirstService Corp. 9,935
Utilities
Fortis Inc. 27,144

Total Canadian Common Stock

Average
Cost

5,530
5,971

995
1,407
2,244
1,224
1,339
1,914
2,275

4,226
2,672
1,123
6,857
1,475

3,327
1,662
2,706
3,117
1,171
3,968
2,941

2,123
1,737
2,093

1,492

167,600

Fair
Value

6,367
7,967

892
1,566
2,715
1,493
1,431
3,981
2,440

4,297
6,452

992
6,500
1,533

3,255
1,545
2,607
2,615
1,384
4,238
3,366

2,159
2,106
2,133

1,480

198,625



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
United States Common Stock
Consumer Discretionary
AutoZone Inc. 605 2,021 2,073
Information Technology
Mastercard Inc. Class A 3,968 1,758 2,242
Visa Inc. Class A 6,539 2,066 2,256
Real Estate
Equinix Inc. REIT 1,379 1,425 1,472
Total United States Common Stock 7,270 8,043
Global Common Stock
Bermuda
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP Partnership Units 81,913 3,025 3,421
Total Global Common Stock 3,025 3,421
Total Stocks 177,895 210,089
Transaction Costs (note 2) (92)

Total Investments 177,803 210,089



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

Introduction

The objective of the Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009 (the Fund) in managing risk is the creation and protection of
contractholder value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the Fund's
continuing profitability. The Fund can be exposed to liquidity risk, market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

A. Risk Management
The Fund’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the
securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2023, and groups the securities by asset type, geographic region and/or
market segment. The following sections describe the significant risks that are relevant to the Fund.

To assist with managing risk, The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life or the Company) maintains a governance
structure that oversees the Fund's investment activities and monitors compliance with the Fund's stated investment strategy
and other regulations.

B. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when a fund encounters difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they come due. The Fund is
exposed to liquidity risk due to potential daily cash redemptions of redeemable units by contractholders. The Fund retains
sufficient cash and cash equivalent positions to maintain adequate liquidity to meet the obligation to fund daily cash
redemptions of their redeemable units.

Some securities are illiquid due to legal restrictions on their resale, the nature of the investment, or simply a lack of
interested buyers for a particular security or security type. Certain securities may become less liquid due to changes in
market conditions, such as interest rate changes or market volatility, which could impair the ability of a fund to sell such
securities quickly.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Company monitors the Fund's liquidity positions on a regular basis.

C. Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that financial instruments that are denominated or exchanged in a currency other than the Canadian
dollar, which is the Fund’s reporting currency, will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The classifications used on
the Schedule of Investment Portfolio for the financial instruments are based on the country of issue.



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

Currency Risk (continued)

The table below indicates the foreign currencies to which the Fund had significant exposure as at December 31, 2023 in
Canadian dollar terms, including the underlying principal amount of forward currency contracts, if any. The table also
illustrates the potential impact to the Fund’s net assets attributable to contractholders, all other variables held constant, as a
result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar. In practice, the actual results may differ from this
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant.

2023
Impact on Net
Cash, Short-term Assets
Deposits and Attributable to
Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ 8,043 $ 50 $ 8,093 $ 81
Total $ 8,043 $ 50 $ 8,093 $ 81
As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders 3.8% —%
*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments
2022
Impact on Net
Cash, Short-term Assets
Deposits and Attributable to
Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ 10,098 $ 27 $ 10,125 $ 101
Total $ 10,098 § 27 $ 10,125 $ 101
As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders 5.1% 0.1%

*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments

Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate, currency or credit risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment,
its issuer, or all factors affecting all instruments traded in a market or market segment. All securities present a risk of loss of
capital. The Fund Manager moderates this risk through careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within
the parameters of the investment strategy. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is equivalent to their fair
value.

For the Fund, the most significant exposure to other price risk arises from its investment in equity securities. As at December
31, 2023, had the prices on the respective stock exchanges for these securities increased or decreased by 1%, with all other
variables held constant, assets would have increased (or decreased) by approximately $2,101 ($1,896 at December 31,
2022) or approximately 1.0% (1.0% at December 31, 2022) of total net assets attributable to contractholders. In practice, the
actual results may differ and the difference could be significant.



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands)

E. Fair Value Classification

The following table presents information about the Fund's assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and indicates
the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Fund to determine such fair value:

Assets measured at fair value
Stocks

Total assets measured at fair value

Assets measured at fair value
Stocks

Total assets measured at fair value

2023
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
210,089 $ — $ — 210,089
210,089 $ — $ — 210,089
2022
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
189,635 $ — $ — 189,635
189,635 $ — $ — 189,635

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2023 or 2022.



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009

(in Canadian $, except number of units outstanding)

The following tables show selected key financial information about the Fund and are intended to help users of the financial statements
understand the Fund's financial performance. Portfolio units are allocated to each category as described in note 3 and are not included on this
page.

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders by Category

For the years ended December 31

Number of units outstanding Net asset value (in $ thousands)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Flex 83,517 93,672 102,825 116,494 132,012 41,660 43,301 51,452 48,472 53,519
Generations/Mosaic 562,245 650,606 715,343 826,201 970,585 16,671 17,876 21,275 20,432 23,387
Generations | 84,305 97,964 110,298 113,392 148,447 1,735 1,869 2,277 1,947 2,483
Generations Il 65,241 76,057 81,013 98,629 106,540 1,027 1,113 1,288 1,308 1,381
Generations Core 40,932 45,467 51,578 65,078 71,992 697 716 877 918 987
75/75 guarantee policy 223,822 193,671 131,005 121,064 65,222 4,486 3,589 2,622 2,010 1,053
75/100 guarantee policy 506,276 469,813 370,645 305,278 257,869 9,898 8,512 7,269 4,978 4,097
100/100 guarantee policy 32,074 25,478 29,060 37,951 49,433 599 442 548 597 760
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 128,735 105,531 91,095 91,397 47,267 2,755 2,079 1,929 1,599 800
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 306,628 297,218 197,544 107,776 68,897 6,408 5,730 4,104 1,853 1,149
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 37,011 47,514 36,859 35,295 34,477 743 883 741 589 560
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 47,933 48,406 44,475 40,103 46,143 1,326 1,206 1,166 849 925
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 19,361 21,593 29,543 17,147 6,205 535 537 773 363 124
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 729 745 761 778 797 20 19 20 16 16
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 8,219 8,303 1,670 1,496 1,369 113 105 23 17 15
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 16,067 14,775 11,524 9,529 4,207 219 185 154 105 45
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 6,412 6,449 — — — 91 83 — — —
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 14,818 24,820 481 17,211 19,312 207 316 7 191 206
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 5,183 5,230 — — — 7 66 — — —

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders Per Unit (note 6)

For the years ended December 31

Net asset value per unit (3) Increase (decrease) per unit (3)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022
Flex 498.83 463.12 501.31 416.85 406.16 35.71 (38.19)
Generations/Mosaic 29.65 27.48 29.74 24.73 2410 217 (2.26)
Generations | 20.58 19.07 20.65 1717 16.73 1.51 (1.58)
Generations Il 15.74 14.64 15.90 13.26 12.96 1.10 (1.26)
Generations Core 17.02 15.74 17.00 14.10 13.71 1.28 (1.26)
75/75 guarantee policy 20.04 18.53 20.01 16.61 16.15 1.51 (1.48)
75/100 guarantee policy 19.55 18.12 19.61 16.31 15.89 1.43 (1.49)
100/100 guarantee policy 18.68 17.37 18.86 15.73 15.38 1.31 (1.49)
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 21.40 19.70 21.18 17.49 16.93 1.70 (1.48)
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 20.90 19.28 20.77 17.20 16.68 1.62 (1.49)
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 20.08 18.59 20.09 16.69 16.24 1.49 (1.50)
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 27.67 24.91 26.21 21.18 20.05 2,76 (1.30)
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 27.63 24.88 26.17 21.15 20.03 2,75 (1.29)
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 27.60 24.85 26.15 21.13 20.01 2,75 (1.30)
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 13.79 12.61 13.47 11.06 10.64 1.18 (0.86)
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 13.63 12.49 13.38 11.00 10.60 1.14 (0.89)
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 14.14 12.88 — — — 1.26 (0.81)
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 13.97 12.75 13.59 11.12 10.67 1.22 (0.84)

PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 13.72 12.56 — — — 1.16 (0.87)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

1. THE FUND
The Fund is offered by The Canada Life Assurance Company.

The Company is the sole issuer of the insurance contracts providing for investment in the Fund. The assets
of the Fund are owned by the Company and are segregated from the other assets of the Company. The
Fund is not a separate legal entity. The Fund invests in a portfolio of assets to generate returns in the form
of investment income and capital appreciation for the contractholders, who are the ultimate beneficiaries of
the Fund. The Fund’s investment activities are overseen by the Company.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco), a publicly listed company
incorporated and domiciled in Canada. Lifeco is a member of the Power Corporation of Canada (Power
Corporation) group of companies and is a subsidiary of Power Corporation.

The Fund’s registered office is at 100 Osborne Street North, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3.

The financial statements of the Fund as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved for
issue by the Company on March 14, 2024.

2, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Uniform
accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements. These accounting
policies are based on the IFRS and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued and
effective at December 31, 2023. The financial statements of the Fund have also been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Part XllI of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association
Guideline G2.

a) Use of Estimates, Significant Accounting Judgments and Assumptions
The preparation of the Fund's financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The valuation of investments is the most significant component of the financial
statements subject to estimates. Although some variability is inherent in these judgments and
assumptions, the Fund believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, the fair value is determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this information is not available,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimates include consideration of liquidity and
model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty's), correlation and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments in the Statement of Financial Position and the level where the financial
instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.



Canadian Equity Fund (Laketon) SF009
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

The Company is required to make significant judgments in order to determine the most appropriate
classification in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The Company has assessed the
Fund's business model, the manner in which all financial instruments are managed and the
requirements of other accounting standards, and has concluded that fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) provides the most appropriate measurement and presentation of the Fund's financial
instruments.

Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements are required to measure their subsidiaries at FVTPL rather than consolidate them. The
criteria that define an investment entity are as follows:

* An entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those
investors with investment services;

* An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both; and

* An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments
on a fair value basis.

In the judgment of management, the Fund meets the definition of an investment entity. This
conclusion will be reassessed on a periodic basis, if any changes in criteria or circumstances exist.

Fair Value Measurement and Classification
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities have been categorized based upon the following fair
value hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value measurements utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Fund has the ability to access. Assets and liabilities utilizing
Level 1 inputs include equity securities that are actively traded on an exchange, exchange-traded
futures and underlying mutual funds which have available prices in an active market with no
redemption restrictions.

Level 2: Fair value measurements utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a
pricing service. The pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported
trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and
reference data. Level 2 assets and liabilities include those priced using a matrix which is based on
credit quality and average life, and generally include some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed securities, most over-the-
counter derivatives, and mortgage loans.

Level 3: Fair value measurements utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability. The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained from single broker
quotes, internal pricing models, or external appraisers. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs
generally include certain bonds and private investments.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
the categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values of financial instruments are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative
is actively traded and a quoted price is available. If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently
ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such cases, instruments are
reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant
unobservable inputs, in which case it is classified as Level 3. Additional disclosures relating to
transfers between levels and a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances in Level 3 are
included in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio, where applicable.

Level 3 financial instruments are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Company. The Company
considers the appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the valuation result using
various valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry.
The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded in active markets by referring to actively
traded securities with similar attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted
cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models. This methodology considers such factors as
the issuer's industry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate and position in the capital structure of
the issuer, as well as, yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For
bonds that are not traded in active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustments generally are based on available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence,
management's best estimate is used.

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation
methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to increased observability of inputs in
valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing
vendors.

The Fund’s fair value hierarchy classification of its assets and liabilities is included in fair value
measurements in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.

Upon initial recognition, the Fund classifies and measures all financial assets and financial liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position at FVTPL. The financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual requirements of the instrument.
Financial instruments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the instrument
has expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. As such,
investment purchase and sale transactions are recorded as of the trade date. The Fund's policy is
not to apply hedge accounting.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Stocks

Stocks are recorded at fair value determined with reference to closing quoted market prices, where
the last traded price falls within the day's bid-ask spread, primarily provided by third party
independent pricing sources. Fair values are determined on the basis of the closing price for a
security on the recognized exchange on which it is principally traded at each reporting date. In
circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Company
determines the point when the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the
specific facts and circumstances.

The fair value of unlisted securities is established using quotations determined by a major dealer in
a particular security. Should the quoted value for a security, in the opinion of the Fund Manager, be
inaccurate, unreliable, or not readily available, the value of the security is estimated using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the market approach (using recent arm's-length market
transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument
that is substantially the same) and the income approach (discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible).

Cash, Short-term Deposits and Overdrafts

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts are comprised of cash on deposit, short-term deposits
and overdrafts with terms to maturity of less than three months at acquisition. Due to the nature of
these assets being highly liquid and having short terms to maturity, these items are reported at fair
value, which approximates their cost.

Classification of Units Issued by the Fund

The units of the Fund are classified as financial liabilities under IFRS as the Fund is contractually
obligated to repurchase or redeem them for cash or another financial asset when the units are
disposed. The net assets attributable to contractholders are classified as FVTPL.

Recognition of Investments and Income
Financial investment purchases and sales are recorded when the Fund becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value.

The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of investment income earned and
expenses incurred by the Fund.

The following are included in net gain (loss) on investments on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income:

Realized gains (losses) on investments - recorded upon the sale or maturity of an asset
and determined using the average cost basis.

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments - calculated as the in-year change in fair value of
the investment and determined using the average cost basis.

Dividend income - accrued as of the ex-dividend date and recorded on the accrual basis.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

9)

h)

After initial measurement, the Fund classifies and measures financial instruments as FVTPL at the
reporting date. Changes in the fair value are recorded in net gain (loss) on investments in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency
The financial statements have been presented in Canadian dollars, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund is domiciled and is the Fund's functional currency.

Foreign currency translations are calculated using the exchange rate in effect when the transaction
occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
functional currency rate of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gains
or losses generated by foreign exchange are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within net gain (loss) on investments.

Miscellaneous income (loss)

Miscellaneous income (loss) generally includes the changes in foreign exchange rates between
trade and settlement dates, foreign exchange rates on bank balances, securities lending income,
derivative income, and management fee rebates.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Amounts Due to/from Broker
Amounts due to brokers are payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for, but
not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due from brokers include margin accounts and receivables for securities sold that have
been contracted for, but not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due to/from brokers are held at fair value which approximates their cost.

Amounts due to/from brokers are settled within a few business days of the reporting date. All
securities are purchased and sold in regular way transactions.

Amounts Due to/from Outside Parties
Amounts due to outside parties are payables to parties other than related parties of the Fund.

Amounts due from outside parties are receivables due from parties other than related parties of the
Fund.

Amounts due to/from outside parties are held at fair value which approximates their cost.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

k)

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist primarily of securities handling charges. All these expenses are paid to
third parties. The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of expenses incurred by the
Fund.

Income Allocation

Net gain (loss) on investments, which includes dividend income, realized gains and losses and
unrealized gains and losses, accrues to each contractholder through the increase (decrease) of the
net asset value (NAV) per unit.

Issue and Redemption of Units

Units attributable to contractholders are redeemable at the contractholders’ option at prices based
on the Fund’'s NAV per unit at the time of redemption and are therefore classified as financial
liabilities.

Units are issued and redeemed at their NAV per unit established as noted in the information folder
of the Fund.

The Fund’s obligation for net assets attributable to contractholders is presented at the redemption
amount at the reporting date. The deposits and withdrawals of contractholders are adjusted for
inter-fund transfers.

Transaction Costs
Transaction costs, such as brokerage commissions, incurred in the purchase and sale of securities
by the Fund are charged to expenses in the year.
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3. DESCRIPTION OF UNITS

The capital of the Fund is divided into categories of units.

Individual units are available to individuals for investment in:

* Registered Retirement Savings Plans,

* Registered Savings Plans,

» Tax Free Savings Accounts, and

* Non-Registered Savings Plans through the purchase of an Individual Savings Contract or a Retirement
Income Fund.

Individual units are available under these different options:
* Emperor,

* Flex,

» Generations/Mosaic,

* Generations |,

* Generations I,

» Generations Core,

 Prestige/Prestige Plus, and

» Private Collections.

In addition to the Individual units, units are available for:

* Option S1R 75/75 guarantee policy,

* Option S1HB Preferred Series 1 (PS1) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1HU Preferred Series 2 (PS2) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1RF Partner Series (PS) 75/75 guarantee policy,

* Option S1HF Preferred Partner Series (PPS) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S2R 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S2HB PS1 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2HU PS2 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2RF PS 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2HF PPS 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3R 100/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3HB PS1 100/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3HU PS2 100/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3RF PS 100/100 guarantee policy, and

* Option S3HF PPS 100/100 guarantee policy.

Portfolio units are those units owned by the Asset Allocation Funds. Each Portfolio fund is represented by
a separate category.

The categories of units, and the various levels within each, are accounted for separately and any increases
or decreases in net assets attributable to contractholders during the year are allocated proportionately to
each category.
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4, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has no legal restrictions on the
issue, repurchase or resale of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund’s offering document.
Units are redeemed at the NAV per unit of a Fund on the redemption date. The capital received by a Fund is
utilized within the respective investment mandate of the Fund.

5. INCOME TAXES

The Fund is deemed to be a trust under the provisions of the Income Tax Act (Canada). Income of a
segregated fund is deemed to be payable to the contractholders and therefore the Fund will not have
taxable income. In addition, capital gains and losses are deemed to be those of the contractholders and not
of the Fund. Realized gains or losses may be reduced by the amount of gains or losses realized by
contractholders on the redemption of their investment. As a result, no provision of income tax is required in
the financial statements of the Fund.

Foreign investment income is subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the income in some
jurisdictions. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of withholding tax deducted at the
source of the income. The Fund presents the withholding tax separately from the net gain (loss) on
investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTRACTHOLDERS PER UNIT
The presentation of unit values is broken down by contractholder category.
Net increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders per unit per category is
calculated by dividing the net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to contractholders from

operations as disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, by the weighted average number of
units of each category outstanding during the year.
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lifeco is the parent of the Company as well as a member of the Power Corporation group of companies.
Through this relationship, the Company is related to IGM Financial Inc., a company in the financial services
sector, along with its subsidiaries I.G. Investment Management, Ltd. and Mackenzie Financial Corporation.

The financial statements of the Fund may include transactions with the following related parties to the

Company:

Related party Relationship Incorporated in

Canada Life Investment Management Ltd. Wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company Canada

Setanta Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

Putnam Investments, LLC ") Wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifeco United States

IGM Financial Inc. Subsidiary of Power Corporation Canada

Canada Life Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the United Kingdom
Company

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

" On January 1, 2024, Lifeco completed the sale of Putnam US Holdings |, LLC (excluding PanAgora

a)

b)

c)

Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary PanAgora Asset Management Inc.) to Franklin Resources Inc. Putnam
US Holdings |, LLC was a subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and was the indirect parent company
of Putnam Investments Canada ULC, which managed certain segregated funds for the Company.

The Company provides management, advisory and administrative services to the Fund which
includes the services of key management personnel. In respect of these services, the Fund is
charged management and other fees that are at market terms and conditions. Management and
other fees for Preferred Series 2 categories are charged directly to the contractholder by redeeming
units from their policy. Management fees and other fees charged to other categories are calculated
at set rates applied against the net assets of the specific category at each valuation date.

The amounts shown as “Due from (to) The Canada Life Assurance Company" represent
outstanding management fees, uncleared deposits/withdrawals and investment activity as at the
December 31 valuation dates of the Fund.

The Fund invests in assets or underlying funds managed by Mackenzie Financial Corporation,
which operates as Mackenzie Investments. All investment transactions with the corresponding
underlying funds are at quoted market prices.
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Supplemental Information (unaudited)

The following tables show selected key financial information about the Fund and are intended to help users of the financial statements
understand the Fund's financial performance.

Management Expense Ratio (%)

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Flex 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.87
Generations/Mosaic 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.87
Generations | 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.86 2.87
Generations Il 3.19 3.19 3.19 3.19 3.20
Generations Core 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64
75/75 guarantee policy 2.64 2.63 2.64 2.63 2.64
75/100 guarantee policy 2.86 2.85 2.85 2.86 2.86
100/100 guarantee policy 3.19 3.19 3.19 3.19 3.19
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 219 2.18 219 2.18 217
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 2.40 2.40 2.39 2.40 2.41
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 273 2.73 2.73 2.73 2.74
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 1.55 1.53 1.55 1.55 1.55
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 1.77 1.76 1.76 1.76 1.77
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 1.09 1.10 — — —
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 1.31 1.31 1.31 1.31 1.30
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 1.64 1.64 — — —

Portfolio Turnover Rate (%) ?

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Portfolio Turnover Rate 70.87 27.27 28.22 53.95 23.12

(1) The management expense ratio has been calculated as the aggregate of all fees, taxes, charges and other expenses incurred during the year divided by the average daily net asset value of
the segregated fund attributable to the particular fee option. All ratios shown are on an annual basis. In circumstances where the particular fund or fee option did not have twelve months of
exposure, the ratios have been annualized. Management expense ratios are calculated for Individual Customer, Wealth Solutions clients only. No management expense ratio is calculated
for the Preferred Series 2 guarantee policy as such fees are charged directly to the contractholder.

(2) The portfolio turnover rates presented in the financial statements reflects the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Inc. (CLHIA) Guideline G2, Individual Variable Insurance
Contracts Relating to Segregated Funds 12.3(a)(iii). The portfolio turnover rates indicate how actively the portfolio investments have been bought or sold throughout the year. A portfolio
turnover rate of 100% is equivalent to the Fund buying and selling all of the securities in its portfolio once in the course of the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Contractholders of Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019 (the “Fund”)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to contractholders and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS”) and the
requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Guideline G2.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“"Canadian
GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance
Association Guideline G2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

/s/ Deloitte LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
March 14, 2024



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Fund Manager: Mackenzie Investments

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Cash and short-term deposits

Investment income due and
accrued

Due from The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 8)

Due from brokers

Due from outside parties

Investments
Bonds
Stocks
Investment fund units

Derivatives (note 7)

Total investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Overdrafts

Due to The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 8)

Due to brokers

Due to outside parties
Derivatives (note 7)

Total liabilities excluding net

assets attributable to
contractholders

Net assets attributable to
contractholders

December 31

December 31

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended

Income

Net gain (loss) on investments  $

Miscellaneous income (loss)
Total income (loss)

Expenses
Management fees (note 8)
Transaction costs
Withholding taxes
Other

Total expenses

Net increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations

attributable to contractholders $

December 31

December 31

2023 2022
16,466 $ (34,464)
318 333
16,784 (34,131)
817 981

1 9

1 1

86 162
905 1,153
15879 $ (35,284)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable

to Contractholders

2023 2022
7,496 § 6,483
1,738 1,729

238,759 240,890
8,096 11,971
794 167
247,649 253,028
256,883 § 261,240
— 3 —

81 75

122 —

252 894

455 969
256,428 § 260,271

For the years ended

Net assets attributable to
contractholders - beginning
of year

Contractholder deposits

Contractholder withdrawals

Increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations
attributable to contractholders

Change in net assets
attributable to contractholders

Net assets attributable to
contractholders - end of year

December 31

December 31

2023 2022
260,271 $ 302,372
18,357 30,267
(38,079) (37,084)
15,879 (35,284)
(3,843) (42,101)
256,428 $ 260,271




Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to the Following Activities

Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders
Adjustments
Add back amortization of premium (discount)
Realized (gains) losses
Unrealized (gains) losses
Gross proceeds of disposition of investments
Gross payments for the purchase of investments
Change in investment income due and accrued
Change in due from/to The Canada Life Assurance Company
Change in due from/to brokers
Change in due from/to outside parties

Financing Activities
Contractholder deposits
Contractholder withdrawals

Net increase (decrease) in cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts
Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, beginning of year

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, end of year

Supplementary cash flow information
Interest income received
Dividend income received

2023 2022
15,879 (35,284)
(391) (107)
9,509 17,118
(16,239) 25,880
192,734 265,683
(180,876) (276,693)
(9) (347)
6 44
122 —
20,735 (3,706)
18,357 30,267
(38,079) (37,084)
(19,722) (6,817)
1,013 (10,523)
6,483 17,006
7,496 6,483
8,337 7,085
443 889



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds
Federal Government
Canada Housing Trust No. 1 2.90% 06-15-2024 1,396,000 1,379 1,383
CPPIB Capital Inc. 2.25% 12-01-2031 1,042,000 937 939
CPPIB Capital Inc. 3.95% 06-02-2032 1,198,000 1,193 1,217
Government of Canada 0.25% 12-01-2054 Real Return 621,000 445 518
Government of Canada 0.50% 12-01-2050 Real Return 3,091,000 3,561 3,016
Government of Canada 1.75% 12-01-2053 3,406,000 2,170 2,560
Government of Canada 2.75% 06-01-2033 11,296,000 10,700 10,978
Total Federal Government 20,385 20,611
Provincial Government
Hydro-Quebec 4.00% 02-15-2055 903,000 1,273 915
Ontario Power Generation Inc. 1.17% 04-22-2026 113,000 101 105
Ontario Power Generation Inc. 2.977% 09-13-2029 485,000 441 457
Ontario Power Generation Inc. 3.215% 04-08-2030 1,696,000 1,808 1,602
Ontario Power Generation Inc. 4.922% 07-19-2032 106,000 106 110
Ontario Teachers' Finance Trust 1.10% 10-19-2027 193,000 169 175
Ontario Teachers' Finance Trust 4.45% 06-02-2032 229,000 228 239
Province of Alberta 2.95% 06-01-2052 3,270,000 2,930 2,700
Province of Alberta 3.05% 12-01-2048 805,000 836 677
Province of Alberta 3.10% 06-01-2050 6,514,000 6,608 5,535
Province of British Columbia 2.95% 06-18-2050 1,426,000 1,504 1,186
Province of British Columbia 3.55% 06-18-2033 1,939,000 1,760 1,906
Province of Manitoba 2.05% 09-05-2052 1,344,000 844 885
Province of Manitoba 2.85% 09-05-2046 2,357,000 2,372 1,902
Province of Manitoba 3.20% 03-05-2050 60,000 64 51
Province of Manitoba 3.80% 09-05-2053 894,000 832 850
Province of Nova Scotia 3.15% 12-01-2051 1,133,000 1,336 963
Province of Ontario 3.65% 06-02-2033 16,671,000 15,657 16,514
Province of Ontario 4.05% 02-02-2032 1,841,000 1,839 1,890
Province of Ontario 4.15% 12-02-2054 1,139,000 1,086 1,187
Province of Quebec 3.60% 09-01-2033 8,982,000 8,525 8,870
Province of Quebec 3.65% 05-20-2032 450,000 450 450
Province of Quebec 3.90% 11-22-2032 350,000 345 356
Province of Quebec 4.40% 12-01-2055 7,206,000 7,434 7,865

Province of Saskatchewan 2.80% 12-02-2052 1,208,000 1,223 967



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Provincial Government (continued)

Province of Saskatchewan 3.10% 06-02-2050 1,980,000 2,057 1,686
Total Provincial Government 61,828 60,043
Municipal Government

City of Ottawa 3.05% 05-10-2039 411,000 409 359

City of Ottawa 3.25% 11-10-2047 158,000 173 134
Total Municipal Government 582 493
Corporate - Non-convertible

407 International Inc. 1.80% 05-22-2025 160,000 160 154

407 International Inc. 3.14% 03-06-2030 613,000 567 586

407 International Inc. 3.30% 03-27-2045 206,000 206 173

407 International Inc. 3.43% 06-01-2033 419,000 379 394

407 International Inc. 3.60% 05-21-2047 394,000 316 345

407 International Inc. 3.67% 03-08-2049 441,000 378 390

407 International Inc. 4.19% 04-25-2042 95,000 82 91

407 International Inc. 4.22% 02-14-2028 252,000 252 251

407 International Inc. 4.86% 07-31-2053 89,000 89 95

Aeroports de Montreal 3.03% 04-21-2050 39,000 30 31

Aeroports de Montreal 3.36% 04-24-2047 266,000 208 229

Aeroports de Montreal 6.55% 10-11-2033 31,000 37 36

AIMCo Realty Investors LP 2.195% 11-04-2026 200,000 200 188

AIMCo Realty Investors LP 2.712% 06-01-2029 627,000 634 574

Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. 4.09% 02-17-2027 18,000 20 18

Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. 4.60% 01-29-2029 133,000 130 132

Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. 5.25% 01-18-2082 250,000 250 208

Algonquin Power Co. 2.85% 07-15-2031 811,000 704 708

Alimentation Couche-Tard 5.592% 09-25-2030 457,000 457 487

AltaGas Ltd. 2.166% 03-16-2027 388,000 388 360

AltaGas Ltd. 4.638% 05-15-2026 44,000 44 44

AltaGas Ltd. 5.25% 01-11-2082 160,000 160 134

AltaGas Ltd. 7.35% 08-17-2082 38,000 38 38

AltaGas Ltd. 8.90% 11-10-2083 123,000 123 129

AltaLink LP 1.509% 09-11-2030 150,000 122 128

AltaLink LP 4.692% 11-28-2032 106,000 106 110



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

AltaLink LP 5.463% 10-11-2055 193,000 193 228
ARC Resources Ltd. 3.465% 03-10-2031 235,000 203 216
Athabasca Indigenous Midstream LP 6.069% 02-05-2042 42,213 42 45
Athene Global Funding 3.127% 03-10-2025 189,000 189 184
Bank of Montreal 2.70% 09-11-2024 717,000 691 705
Bank of Montreal 3.19% 03-01-2028 628,000 606 606
Bank of Montreal 3.65% 04-01-2027 469,000 460 457
Bank of Montreal 4.30% 11-26-2025 231,000 229 219
Bank of Montreal 4.309% 06-01-2027 784,000 778 780
Bank of Montreal 4.537% 12-18-2028 394,000 394 396
Bank of Montreal 4.709% 12-07-2027 1,635,000 1,630 1,649
Bank of Montreal 6.034% 09-07-2033 723,000 721 754
Bank of Montreal 6.534% 10-27-2032 368,000 376 388
Bank of Montreal 7.325% 11-26-2082 753,000 753 750
Baytex Energy Corp. 8.50% 04-30-2030 144A 84,000 118 115
BCI QuadReal Realty 1.056% 03-12-2024 180,000 180 179
BCI QuadReal Realty 1.073% 02-04-2026 199,000 199 186
BCI QuadReal Realty 2.551% 06-24-2026 52,000 49 50
BCIMC Realty Corp. 2.84% 06-03-2025 650,000 679 633
Bell Canada 2.20% 05-29-2028 395,000 371 363
Bell Canada 3.00% 03-17-2031 220,000 195 200
Bell Canada 5.15% 11-14-2028 191,000 191 198
Bell Canada 5.25% 03-15-2029 273,000 273 285
Bell Canada Inc. 4.45% 02-27-2047 327,000 287 301
Bell Canada Inc. 5.85% 11-10-2032 129,000 136 140
Brookfield Infrastructure Finance ULC 4.193% 09-11-2028 705,000 799 691
Brookfield Infrastructure Finance ULC 5.616% 11-14-2027 319,000 319 330
Brookfield Renewable Energy Partners LP 3.63% 01-15-2027 443,000 450 431
Brookfield Residential Properties Inc./Brookfield Residential US Corp.
5.125% 06-15-2029 74,000 74 65
Bruce Power LP 4.00% 06-21-2030 537,000 524 522
Bruce Power LP 4.99% 12-21-2032 59,000 59 61
CAE Inc. 5.541% 06-12-2028 163,000 163 168
Calgary Airport Authority 3.554% 10-07-2051 100,000 87 87
Calgary Airport Authority 3.554% 10-07-2053 90,000 73 78
Canadian Core Real Estate 3.299% 03-02-2027 210,000 210 197

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 1.10% 01-19-2026 890,000 889 832



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 1.96% 04-21-2031 709,000 709 662
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 4.20% 04-07-2032 178,000 176 174
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 4.375% 10-28-2025 261,000 247 248
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 4.95% 06-29-2027 1,001,000 1,010 1,015
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 5.00% 12-07-2026 633,000 633 642
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 5.05% 10-07-2027 169,000 168 172
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 5.33% 01-20-2033 212,000 212 214
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 5.35% 04-20-2033 193,000 193 195
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 5.935% 07-14-2026 258,000 258 259
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 7.15% 07-28-2082 180,000 180 179
Canadian National Railway Co. 3.00% 02-08-2029 33,000 33 31
Canadian National Railway Co. 4.40% 05-10-2033 179,000 179 181
Canadian Natural Resources Ltd. 3.42% 12-01-2026 488,000 488 474
Canadian Pacific Railway Ltd. 2.54% 02-28-2028 524,000 514 491
Canadian Pacific Railway Ltd. 3.15% 03-13-2029 207,000 188 197
Canadian Utilities Ltd. 4.851% 06-03-2052 231,000 229 240
Canadian Western Bank 1.926% 04-16-2026 1,024,000 1,031 965
Canadian Western Bank 2.597% 09-06-2024 350,000 331 344
Canadian Western Bank 2.606% 01-30-2025 130,000 133 126
Canadian Western Bank 3.859% 04-21-2025 320,000 320 315
Canadian Western Bank 5.00% 07-31-2081 80,000 80 62
Canadian Western Bank 5.146% 09-02-2027 573,000 571 581
Canadian Western Bank 5.261% 12-20-2025 99,000 99 100
Canadian Western Bank 5.937% 12-22-2032 93,000 93 93
Canadian Western Bank 6.00% 04-30-2081 128,000 128 116
Capital Power Corp. 4.284% 09-18-2024 270,000 298 268
Capital Power Corp. 5.816% 09-15-2028 168,000 168 175
Capital Power Corp. 5.973% 01-25-2034 170,000 170 177
Cascades Inc./Cascades USA Inc. 5.125% 01-15-2025 197,000 197 196
CDP Financial Inc. 1.50% 10-19-2026 533,000 532 501
Cenovus Energy Inc. 3.50% 02-07-2028 1,301,000 1,294 1,254
Cenovus Energy Inc. 3.60% 03-10-2027 91,000 89 89
Central 1 Credit Union 5.877% 11-10-2026 132,000 132 135
Choice Properties REIT 2.456% 11-30-2026 115,000 115 108
Choice Properties REIT 2.848% 05-21-2027 308,000 315 291
Choice Properties REIT 3.532% 06-11-2029 976,000 884 922

Choice Properties REIT 5.40% 03-01-2033 490,000 491 502



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Choice Properties REIT 5.699% 02-28-2034 333,000 331 349
Choice Properties REIT 6.003% 06-24-2032 94,000 99 101
Coast Capital Savings Federal Credit Union 8.875% 05-02-2033 350,000 350 355
Cogeco Communications Inc. 2.991% 09-22-2031 165,000 165 144
Cogeco Communications Inc. 5.299% 02-16-2033 85,000 85 86
Cologix Data Centers Issuer LLC 4.94% 01-25-2052 31,000 31 29
Cologix Data Centers Issuer LLC 5.68% 01-25-2052 25,000 25 23
Corus Entertainment Inc. 5.00% 05-11-2028 65,000 65 44
Crombie REIT 3.133% 08-12-2031 66,000 66 56
Crombie REIT 3.677% 08-26-2026 126,000 126 122
CU Inc. 2.963% 09-07-2049 250,000 193 194
CU Inc. 4.085% 09-02-2044 465,000 463 439
CU Inc. 4.773% 09-14-2052 216,000 216 228
CU Inc. 5.088% 09-20-2053 203,000 203 225
Curaleaf Holdings Inc. 8.00% 12-15-2026 220,000 282 247
Dollarama Inc. 5.084% 10-27-2025 300,000 299 302
Dollarama Inc. 5.533% 09-26-2028 217,000 217 228
Dream Industrial REIT 1.662% 12-22-2025 128,000 128 121
Dream Industrial REIT 2.057% 06-17-2027 537,000 527 489
Dream Industrial REIT 2.539% 12-07-2026 152,000 152 142
Dream Industrial REIT 5.383% 03-22-2028 82,000 82 83
Dream Industrial REIT 5.383% 03-22-2028 120,000 121 122
Emera Inc. 4.838% 05-02-2030 410,000 388 412
Enbridge Gas Inc. 2.35% 09-15-2031 172,000 143 151
Enbridge Gas Inc. 2.37% 08-09-2029 61,000 52 56
Enbridge Gas Inc. 3.20% 09-15-2051 331,000 301 261
Enbridge Gas Inc. 4.55% 08-17-2052 399,000 377 398
Enbridge Gas Inc. 5.70% 10-06-2033 141,000 141 155
Enbridge Inc. 3.10% 09-21-2033 2,095,000 2,070 1,812
Enbridge Inc. 4.90% 05-26-2028 229,000 229 233
Enbridge Inc. 5.375% 09-27-2077 2,157,000 2,086 2,033
Enbridge Inc. 6.625% 04-12-2078 699,000 702 689
Enbridge Inc. 8.495% 01-15-2084 75,000 78 79
Enbridge Inc. 8.747% 01-15-2084 322,000 328 347
Enbridge Pipelines Inc. 4.33% 02-22-2049 156,000 152 137
Enbridge Pipelines Inc. 4.55% 09-29-2045 67,000 60 61

Enbridge Pipelines Inc. 5.82% 08-17-2053 58,000 62 63



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Energir Inc. 2.10% 04-16-2027 168,000 153 158
Energir LP 4.67% 09-27-2032 163,000 163 167
EPCOR Utilities Inc. 3.106% 07-08-2049 402,000 300 321
EPCOR Utilities Inc. 3.554% 11-27-2047 308,000 316 268
EPCOR Utilities Inc. 4.725% 09-02-2052 221,000 221 232
EPCOR Utilities Inc. 5.326% 10-03-2053 416,000 431 478
Equitable Bank 1.876% 11-26-2025 35,000 31 33
Equitable Bank 3.362% 03-02-2026 167,000 167 161
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd. 3.95% 03-03-2031 465,000 445 438
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 1.093% 01-21-2026 2,319,000 2,319 2,166
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 1.587% 09-10-2026 310,000 291 289
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 4.407% 05-19-2027 528,000 528 527
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 5.035% 08-23-2032 465,000 465 465
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 5.20% 10-01-2025 355,000 355 358
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 5.467% 11-17-2028 245,000 245 255
Federation des Caisses Desjardins du Quebec 5.475% 08-16-2028 112,000 112 117
Finning International Inc. 4.445% 05-16-2028 148,000 148 148
First Capital REIT 3.447% 03-01-2028 140,000 124 129
First National Financial Corp. 2.961% 11-17-2025 130,000 130 123
First West Credit Union 9.186% 08-09-2033 157,000 157 166
Ford Credit Canada Co. 2.961% 09-16-2026 108,000 108 102
Ford Credit Canada Co. 6.326% 11-10-2026 161,000 161 165
Ford Credit Canada Co. 6.777% 09-15-2025 370,000 370 378
Ford Credit Canada Co. 7.00% 02-10-2026 480,000 480 494
Ford Credit Canada Co. 7.375% 05-12-2026 257,000 257 268
Fortis Inc. 4.431% 05-31-2029 373,000 373 374
Fortis Inc. 5.677% 11-08-2033 235,000 235 254
General Motors Financial of Canada Ltd. 5.20% 02-09-2028 136,000 136 138
GFL Environmental Inc. 3.50% 09-01-2028 144A 475,000 566 580
GFL Environmental Inc. 6.75% 01-15-2031 144A 144,000 196 197
Gibson Energy Inc. 5.25% 12-22-2030 415,000 415 356
Gibson Energy Inc. 5.75% 07-12-2033 223,000 224 235
Gibson Energy Inc. 8.70% 07-12-2083 98,000 99 102
Granite REIT Holdings LP 2.194% 08-30-2028 441,000 421 394
Granite REIT Holdings LP 2.378% 12-18-2030 49,000 40 42
Granite REIT Holdings LP 3.062% 06-04-2027 1,197,000 1,234 1,134

Greater Toronto Airports Authority 1.54% 05-03-2028 313,000 276 285



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Greater Toronto Airports Authority 2.75% 10-17-2039 855,000 853 699
Greater Toronto Airports Authority 6.47% 02-02-2034 46,000 53 54
Greater Toronto Airports Authority 7.05% 06-12-2030 204,000 233 235
Greater Toronto Airports Authority 7.10% 06-04-2031 204,000 237 239
H&R REIT 4.071% 06-16-2025 353,000 381 345
Home Trust Co. 5.317% 06-13-2024 229,000 229 228
Honda Canada Finance Inc. 4.873% 09-23-2027 213,000 213 217
Honda Canada Finance Inc. 5.73% 09-28-2028 146,000 146 155
HSBC Bank Canada 3.403% 03-24-2025 410,000 409 403
Hydro One Inc. 2.23% 09-17-2031 430,000 395 379
Hydro One Inc. 4.16% 01-27-2033 134,000 134 134
Hydro One Inc. 4.59% 10-09-2043 346,000 327 351
Hydro One Inc. 4.85% 11-30-2054 257,000 257 277
Hydro One Inc. 4.89% 03-13-2037 365,000 355 379
Hydro One Inc. 4.91% 01-27-2028 309,000 309 319
Hydro One Inc. 6.93% 06-01-2032 265,000 309 312
Hydro One Inc. 7.35% 06-03-2030 408,000 468 477
Hydro One Ltd. 1.41% 10-15-2027 295,000 295 269
iA Financial Corp. Inc. 2.40% 02-21-2025 105,000 105 102
iA Financial Corp. Inc. 5.685% 06-20-2033 129,000 129 133
Intact Financial Corp. 4.125% 03-31-2081 60,000 60 53
Intact Financial Corp. 5.459% 09-22-2032 144A 152,000 201 201
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 3.484% 12-16-2026 332,000 334 321
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 3.983% 11-25-2031 180,000 180 164
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 4.232% 06-01-2027 492,000 503 484
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 5.71% 05-29-2030 151,000 151 155
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 5.76% 02-17-2028 194,000 193 200
Inter Pipeline Ltd. 6.875% 03-26-2079 142,000 142 137
John Deere Financial Inc. 5.17% 09-15-2028 73,000 72 76
Keyera Corp. 3.959% 05-29-2030 384,000 410 365
Keyera Corp. 5.95% 03-10-2081 200,000 200 177
Kruger Packaging Holdings LP 6.00% 06-01-2026 186,000 186 180
Kruger Products Inc. 5.375% 04-09-2029 40,000 40 36
Laurentian Bank of Canada 1.15% 06-03-2024 211,000 211 207
Laurentian Bank of Canada 4.60% 09-02-2025 286,000 286 283
Laurentian Bank of Canada 5.095% 06-15-2032 461,000 461 439

Loblaw Companies Ltd. 2.284% 05-07-2030 116,000 97 103



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,

Shares or

Par Value

Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Loblaw Companies Ltd. 5.336% 09-13-2052 148,000
Lower Mattagami Energy LP 2.433% 05-14-2031 206,000
Lower Mattagami Energy LP 3.42% 06-20-2024 181,000
Lower Mattagami Energy LP 4.854% 10-31-2033 126,000
Magna International Inc. 4.95% 01-31-2031 186,000
Manulife Bank of Canada 1.536% 09-14-2026 319,000
Manulife Bank of Canada 2.864% 02-16-2027 361,000
Manulife Financial Corp. 2.237% 05-12-2030 775,000
Manulife Financial Corp. 3.049% 08-20-2029 1,753,000
Manulife Financial Corp. 5.409% 03-10-2033 394,000
Manulife Financial Corp. 7.117% 06-19-2082 254,000
Mattamy Group Corp. 4.625% 03-01-2030 144A 20,000
MCAP Commercial LP 3.743% 08-25-2025 224,000
MEG Energy Corp. 5.875% 02-01-2029 144A 84,000
Metro Inc. 4.657% 02-07-2033 59,000
National Bank of Canada 1.534% 06-15-2026 182,000
National Bank of Canada 1.573% 08-18-2026 234,000
National Bank of Canada 4.05% 08-15-2081 250,000
National Bank of Canada 4.30% 11-15-2025 508,000
National Bank of Canada 4.968% 12-07-2026 383,000
National Bank of Canada 5.023% 02-01-2029 158,000
National Bank of Canada 5.219% 06-14-2028 380,000
National Bank of Canada 5.296% 11-03-2025 215,000
National Bank of Canada 5.426% 08-16-2032 460,000
North West Redwater Partnership 2.80% 06-01-2027 775,000
North West Redwater Partnership 3.20% 04-24-2026 502,000
North West Redwater Partnership 3.20% 07-22-2024 185,000
North West Redwater Partnership 3.65% 06-01-2035 240,000
North West Redwater Partnership 3.70% 02-23-2043 174,000
North West Redwater Partnership 4.15% 06-01-2033 559,000
North West Redwater Partnership 4.25% 06-01-2029 150,000
North West Redwater Partnership/NWR Financing Co. Ltd. 2.80% 06-01-2031 916,000
OMERS Finance Trust 2.60% 05-14-2029 365,000
Ontario Power Generation Inc. 2.893% 04-08-2025 914,000
Parkland Corp. of Canada 3.875% 06-16-2026 590,000
Parkland Corp. of Canada 4.375% 03-26-2029 1,853,000

Parkland Corp. of Canada 6.00% 06-23-2028 456,000

Average
Cost

148
206
177
126
186
319
361
712
1,798
394
252
22
224
110
59
175
213
250
508
383
158
379
216
460
748
524
180
207
162
504
150
857
365
877
590
1,845
454

Fair
Value

161
184
179
132
192
297
346
747
1,725
403
255
25
215
108
60
170
223
194
479
388
162
391
217
465
739
489
183
220
152
544
150
822
346
893
566
1,711
457



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,

Shares or

Par Value

Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Pembina Pipeline Corp. 2.99% 01-22-2024 671,000
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 4.02% 03-27-2028 932,000
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 4.74% 01-21-2047 54,000
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 4.80% 01-25-2031 330,000
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 4.81% 03-25-2044 489,000
Pembina Pipeline Corp. 5.72% 06-22-2026 180,000
Prime Structured Mortgage Trust 1.856% 11-15-2024 244,000
Prologis LP 5.25% 01-15-2031 78,000
PSP Capital Inc. 2.60% 03-01-2032 829,000
PSP Capital Inc. 4.15% 06-01-2033 18,000
Reliance LP 2.67% 08-01-2028 215,000
Reliance LP 2.68% 12-01-2027 305,000
Reliance LP 3.75% 03-15-2026 128,000
RioCan REIT 2.361% 03-10-2027 205,000
RioCan REIT 2.576% 02-12-2025 2,083,000
RioCan REIT 2.829% 11-08-2028 322,000
RioCan REIT 4.628% 05-01-2029 69,000
RioCan REIT 5.611% 10-06-2027 111,000
RioCan REIT 5.962% 10-01-2029 222,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 2.90% 12-09-2030 172,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 3.10% 04-15-2025 1,080,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 3.75% 04-15-2029 605,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 5.00% 12-17-2081 2,293,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 5.25% 03-15-2082 144A 495,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 5.70% 09-21-2028 409,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 6.68% 11-04-2039 202,000
Rogers Communications Inc. 6.75% 11-09-2039 298,000
Royal Bank of Canada 2.088% 06-30-2030 300,000
Royal Bank of Canada 2.14% 11-03-2031 458,000
Royal Bank of Canada 2.328% 01-28-2027 500,000
Royal Bank of Canada 2.609% 11-01-2024 1,288,000
Royal Bank of Canada 2.88% 12-23-2029 2,766,000
Royal Bank of Canada 4.612% 07-26-2027 767,000
Royal Bank of Canada 4.632% 05-01-2028 241,000
Royal Bank of Canada 4.642% 01-17-2028 458,000
Royal Bank of Canada 5.01% 02-01-2033 247,000

Royal Bank of Canada 5.235% 11-02-2026 419,000

Average
Cost

700
1,036
59
330
471
180
244
76
764
18
215
305
128
205
2,122
293
69
111
222
144
1,033
602
2,137
633
408
256
394
282
444
450
1,241
2,810
758
241
458
247
420

Fair
Value

670
912
49
279
452
180
237
81
765
18
194
280
125
189
2,022
289
67
112
228
154
1,055
582
2,187
631
429
229
341
287
425
471
1,262
2,697
772
243
462
248
428



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)

Royal Bank of Canada 5.341% 06-23-2026 261,000 261 266
Russel Metals Inc. 5.75% 10-27-2025 535,000 535 535
Sagen MI Canada Inc. 3.261% 03-05-2031 168,000 167 142
Sagen MI Canada Inc. 4.95% 03-24-2081 136,000 136 118
Saputo Inc. 5.492% 11-20-2030 223,000 223 234
Sienna Senior Living Inc. 2.82% 03-31-2027 75,000 75 69
Sun Life Financial Inc. 2.06% 10-01-2035 521,000 521 438
Sun Life Financial Inc. 2.38% 08-13-2029 1,027,000 1,025 1,008
Sun Life Financial Inc. 2.58% 05-10-2032 403,000 415 377
Sun Life Financial Inc. 2.80% 11-21-2033 331,000 331 304
Sun Life Financial Inc. 4.78% 08-10-2034 490,000 488 490
Sun Life Financial Inc. 5.50% 07-04-2035 212,000 212 219
Suncor Energy Inc. 3.95% 03-04-2051 347,000 340 290
Suncor Energy Inc. 5.40% 11-17-2026 310,000 310 318
Superior Plus LP 4.25% 05-18-2028 800,000 795 744
Tamarack Valley Energy Ltd. 7.25% 05-10-2027 50,000 47 49
TELUS Corp. 2.05% 10-07-2030 320,000 309 274
TELUS Corp. 2.85% 11-13-2031 247,000 206 218
TELUS Corp. 3.15% 02-19-2030 472,000 439 437
TELUS Corp. 3.30% 05-02-2029 695,000 693 659
TELUS Corp. 4.70% 03-06-2048 290,000 235 270
TELUS Corp. 4.95% 03-28-2033 121,000 121 122
Teranet Holdings LP 3.544% 06-11-2025 431,000 431 419
Teranet Holdings LP 3.719% 02-23-2029 478,000 478 446
The Bank of Nova Scotia 2.95% 03-08-2027 193,000 181 184
The Bank of Nova Scotia 3.934% 05-03-2032 230,000 230 222
The Bank of Nova Scotia 5.50% 05-08-2026 938,000 934 958
The Bank of Nova Scotia 5.50% 12-29-2025 571,000 570 580
The Bank of Nova Scotia 5.679% 08-02-2033 157,000 157 161
The Bank of Nova Scotia 7.023% 07-27-2082 651,000 647 643
The Empire Life Insurance Co. 3.625% 04-17-2026 108,000 108 84
The Empire Life Insurance Co. 5.503% 01-13-2033 129,000 129 130
The Independent Order of Foresters 2.885% 10-15-2035 259,000 259 221
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 2.26% 01-07-2027 297,000 288 279
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 2.667% 09-09-2025 330,000 314 319
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 3.06% 01-26-2032 820,000 813 778

The Toronto-Dominion Bank 3.105% 04-22-2030 2,218,000 2,126 2,157



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
Canadian Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 4.21% 06-01-2027 954,000 937 947
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 4.34% 01-27-2026 696,000 687 694
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 4.477% 01-18-2028 645,000 641 646
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 4.68% 01-08-2029 284,000 284 287
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 5.376% 10-21-2027 243,000 243 251
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 5.423% 07-10-2026 244,000 244 249
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 5.491% 09-08-2028 370,000 370 387
TMX Group Ltd. 2.016% 02-12-2031 129,000 129 110
Toronto Hydro Corp. 4.61% 06-14-2033 267,000 267 275
Toronto Hydro Corp. 4.95% 10-13-2052 226,000 233 247
Tourmaline Oil Corp. 2.529% 02-12-2029 117,000 117 107
Toyota Credit Canada Inc. 4.45% 01-26-2026 219,000 217 219
TransCanada PipeLines Ltd. 3.80% 04-05-2027 581,000 653 570
TransCanada PipeLines Ltd. 4.34% 10-15-2049 275,000 233 238
TransCanada PipeLines Ltd. 5.277% 07-15-2030 402,000 402 415
TransCanada PipeLines Ltd. Floating Rate 05-18-2077 2,201,000 2,103 2,012
TransCanada Trust 4.20% 03-04-2081 459,000 459 379
TransCanada Trust 5.30% 03-15-2077 37,000 44 44
Transcontinental Inc. 2.667% 02-03-2025 79,000 74 76
Vancouver Airport Authority 1.76% 09-20-2030 76,000 64 66
Ventas Canada Finance Ltd. 5.398% 04-21-2028 270,000 270 275
Vermilion Energy Inc. 6.875% 05-01-2030 144A 31,000 40 40
Videotron Ltd. 3.125% 01-15-2031 737,000 713 632
Videotron Ltd. 4.50% 01-15-2030 945,000 945 893
Videotron Ltd./Videotron Ltee. 3.625% 06-15-2028 300,000 300 280
Waste Management of Canada Corp. 2.60% 09-23-2026 78,000 78 75
WSP Global Inc. 2.408% 04-19-2028 431,000 434 397
Total Corporate - Non-convertible 128,744 126,032
Corporate - Convertible
The Cannabist Company Holdings Inc. 6.00% 06-29-2025 Conv. 25,000 31 26

Total Corporate - Convertible 31 26



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Canadian Bonds (continued)
Mortgage Backed
First National Financial Corp. 3.84% 11-01-2028

Total Mortgage Backed

Total Canadian Bonds

United States Bonds

Federal Government
United States Treasury 3.50% 02-15-2033
United States Treasury Inflation Index 0.125% 02-15-2051 Real Return
United States Treasury Inflation Index 0.125% 02-15-2052 Real Return
United States Treasury Inflation Index 0.50% 04-15-2024 Real Return
United States Treasury Inflation Index 1.50% 02-15-2053 Real Return

Total Federal Government

Corporate - Non-convertible
Air Lease Corp. 5.40% 06-01-2028
Amazon.com Inc. 3.95% 04-13-2052
Amazon.com Inc. 4.70% 12-01-2032
Athene Global Funding 2.47% 06-09-2028
Bank of America Corp. 1.978% 09-15-2027
Bank of America Corp. 2.598% 04-04-2029
Bank of America Corp. 3.615% 03-16-2028
Bimbo Bakeries USA Inc. 6.05% 01-15-2029
Broadcom Inc. 4.11% 09-15-2028
Charter Communications Operating LLC 5.05% 03-30-2029
DIRECTV Holdings LLC/DIRECTV Financing Co. 5.875% 08-15-2027 144A
Glencore Funding LLC 5.40% 05-08-2028 144A
Go Daddy Operating Co. LLC/GD Finance Co. Inc. 3.50% 03-01-2029 144A
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 1.896% 03-05-2028
LGI Homes Inc. 8.75% 12-15-2028 144A
Micron Technology Inc. 5.375% 04-15-2028
Nestle Holdings Inc. 2.192% 01-26-2029
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings Inc. 1.90% 06-15-2028
Pfizer Investment Enterprises Pte. Ltd. 4.65% 05-19-2030
Pfizer Investment Enterprises Pte. Ltd. 4.75% 05-19-2033

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value

1,741,000

1,300,000
1,864,000
1,545,000
4,299,000
1,965,000

191,000
392,000
373,000
93,000
307,000
216,000
1,416,000
200,000
273,000
411,000
41,000
43,000
5,000
564,000
10,000
273,000
242,000
143,000
785,000
241,000

Average
Cost

1,682

1,682

213,252

1,672
1,928
2,029
6,824
2,551

15,004

189
466
507
84
302
216
1,344
276
348
516
52
59

564
14
367
242
172
1,056
324

Fair
Value

1,728

1,728

208,933

1,672
1,817
1,395
6,865
2,454

14,203

196
456
508
83
286
199
1,373
279
354
540
51
58

521
14
369
224
168
1,048
320



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value
United States Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)
Tenet Healthcare Corp. 4.375% 01-15-2030 35,000 47 43
The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. 2.013% 02-28-2028 169,000 169 152
The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. 2.599% 11-30-2027 455,000 455 429
The Walt Disney Co. 3.057% 03-30-2027 1,122,000 1,188 1,084
T-Mobile USA Inc. 3.75% 04-15-2027 408,000 509 525
T-Mobile USA Inc. 4.95% 03-15-2028 196,000 263 264
T-Mobile USA Inc. 5.20% 01-15-2033 317,000 414 431
Univision Communications Inc. 4.50% 05-01-2029 144A 50,000 61 59
Verizon Communications Inc. 2.375% 03-22-2028 682,000 640 631
Verizon Communications Inc. Floating Rate 03-20-2026 83,000 104 110
Wells Fargo & Co. 2.568% 05-01-2025 501,000 468 484
Wells Fargo & Co. 2.975% 05-19-2026 162,000 175 156
Zoetis Inc. 2.00% 05-15-2030 286,000 314 327
Total Corporate - Non-convertible 11,911 11,748
Total United States Bonds 26,915 25,951
Global Bonds
Australia
Transurban Finance Co. Pty Ltd. 4.555% 11-14-2028 106,000 116 105
Austria
Suzano Austria GmbH 2.50% 09-15-2028 163,000 204 190
British Virgin Islands
Sino-Ocean Land Treasure IV Ltd. 4.75% 08-05-2029 300,000 156 32
Cayman Islands
CIFI Holdings Group Co. Ltd. 6.00% 07-16-2025 200,000 64 18
Country Garden Holdings Co. Ltd. 2.70% 07-12-2026 300,000 257 33
Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. 10.50% 09-07-2022 ) 600,000 368 30
Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. 8.65% 07-22-2022 " 200,000 91 10
Logan Group Co. Ltd. 4.70% 07-06-2026 204,000 166 19

M This security was past due as at December 31, 2023. The term-to-maturity for this security is disclosed as 1 year or less in
the Interest Rate Risk note within the Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Global Bonds (continued)

Cayman Islands (continued)
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 1.00% 09-30-2032
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 6.00% 09-30-2025
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 6.25% 09-30-2026
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 6.50% 09-30-2027
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 6.75% 09-30-2028
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 7.00% 09-30-2029
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. 7.25% 09-30-2030

Chile
Colbun SA 3.15% 01-19-2032

Ireland
AerCap Ireland Capital DAC/AerCap Global Aviation Trust 3.00% 10-29-2028

Jersey
Heathrow Funding Ltd. 2.694% 10-13-2027

Heathrow Funding Ltd. 3.40% 03-08-2028
Heathrow Funding Ltd. 3.726% 04-13-2033
Heathrow Funding Ltd. 3.782% 09-04-2030

Luxembourg
Aroundtown SA 4.625% 09-18-2025

Minerva Luxembourg SA 8.875% 09-13-2033

Mexico
Becle SAB de CV 2.50% 10-14-2031

Netherlands
NXP BV/NXP Funding LLC/NXP USA Inc. 2.65% 02-15-2032

United Kingdom
Anglian Water Services Financing PLC 4.525% 08-26-2032
BP Capital Markets PLC 3.47% 05-15-2025
MARB BondCo PLC 3.95% 01-29-2031

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value

45,057
36,450
36,450
72,901
109,352
109,352
51,372

206,000

198,000

165,000
363,000
262,000
237,000

487,000
200,000

249,000

84,000

173,000
112,000
200,000

Average
Cost

14
11
11
22
33
33
16

254

230

165
363
268
231

485
273

312

107

173
109
205

Fair
Value

© 01 O O\

12
11

236

240

154
347
237
224

470
281

265

94

169
110
215



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Global Bonds (continued)

Supra - National
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 0.00% 03-31-2027

Total Global Bonds

Total Bonds

Canadian Common Stock

Exchange Traded Funds
BMO High Yield US Corporate Bond Hedged to CAD Index ETF
Mackenzie Canadian Aggregate Bond Index ETF *

Total Canadian Common Stock

Canadian Preferred Stock
Communication Services
BCE Inc. 2.75% Preferred
BCE Inc. 3.61% Preferred
BCE Inc. 4.13% Preferred

Consumer Staples
Loblaw Companies Ltd. 5.30% Preferred

Energy
TransAlta Corp. 4.027% Preferred

Financials
Brookfield Corp. 4.80% Preferred Conv.

Utilities
Emera Inc. 4.25% Preferred
Emera Inc. 4.60% Preferred

TransAlta Corp. 2.709% Preferred

Total Canadian Preferred Stock

*The issuer of this security is a related company to the issuer of the Fund.

No. of Units,

Shares or
Par Value

280,000

84,711
74,000

697
4,428
223

831

660

2,187

207
1,995
2,116

Average

Cost

334

5,071

245,238

1,119
6,750

7,869

11
69

22

12

56

50
26

255

Fair
Value

343

3,875

238,759

947
6,893

7,840

11
72

18

12

43

34
26

223



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Global Preferred Stock

Bermuda
Brookfield Renewable Partners LP 5.00% Preferred

Total Global Preferred Stock

Total Stocks

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value

1,772

Average

Cost

44

44

8,168

Fair

Value

33

33

8,096



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, contracts, shares, par value or contract price)

As at December 31, 2023

Schedule of Derivative Contracts

Forward Currency Contracts

Purchased Currency

Sold Currency

Contract Value as at Value as at Unrealized
Price Settlement Date Currency December 31 Currency December 31 Gain (Loss)
1.3572 January 11, 2024 Canadian Dollar 2,001 United States Dollar 1,965 36
1.3596 January 11, 2024 Canadian Dollar 1,531 United States Dollar 1,502 29
1.3445 January 18, 2024 Canadian Dollar 3,188 United States Dollar 3,153 35
1.3463 January 18, 2024 Canadian Dollar 2,354 United States Dollar 2,326 28
1.3461 January 18, 2024 Canadian Dollar 1,642 United States Dollar 1,623 19
1.3601 January 24, 2024 Canadian Dollar 2,638 United States Dollar 2,586 52
1.3488 January 24, 2024 Canadian Dollar 1,948 United States Dollar 1,921 27
1.3688 February 4, 2024 Canadian Dollar 1,541 United States Dollar 1,503 38
1.3364 February 4, 2024 Canadian Dollar 4,885 United States Dollar 4,852 33
1.3643 February 8, 2024 Canadian Dollar 6,568 United States Dollar 6,423 145
1.3487 February 8, 2024 Canadian Dollar 4,385 United States Dollar 4,325 60
1.3408 February 8, 2024 Canadian Dollar 3,765 United States Dollar 3,730 35
1.3395 February 8, 2024 Canadian Dollar 2,785 United States Dollar 2,761 24
1.3398 February 8, 2024 Canadian Dollar 958 United States Dollar 950 8
1.3833 February 15, 2024 Canadian Dollar 3,604 United States Dollar 3,488 116
1.3824 February 15, 2024 Canadian Dollar 1,356 United States Dollar 1,313 43
Derivatives - Assets 728
0.7312 January 11, 2024 United States Dollar 1,783 Canadian Dollar 1,841 (58)
0.7303 January 18, 2024 United States Dollar 246 Canadian Dollar 254 (8)
0.7299 January 18, 2024 United States Dollar 914 Canadian Dollar 945 (31)
0.7226 January 24, 2024 United States Dollar 709 Canadian Dollar 741 (32)
0.7340 January 24, 2024 United States Dollar 1,398 Canadian Dollar 1,437 (39)
0.7344 February 8, 2024 United States Dollar 2,331 Canadian Dollar 2,397 (66)
Derivatives - Liabilities (234)
Total Forward Currency Contracts 494
Futures Contracts
No. of Average Contract Notional Price as at Unrealized
Contracts Price Futures Contracts Maturity Date Amount December 31 Gain (Loss)
17) CAD 145.33 JPN 10YR BOND (OSE) 03-31-2024 March 31, 2024  JPY 2,494,070 CAD 146.71 54
72 CAD 110.46 CAN 5YR BOND 03-31-2024 March 31, 2024 CAD 8,114 CAD 112.69 12
25 CAD 109.33 US 10YR NOTE 03-31-2024 March 31, 2024 USD 2,822 CAD 112.89 -
Derivatives - Assets 66
26 CAD 122.78 US ULTRA BOND 03-31-2024 March 31, 2024 USD 3,473 CAD 133.59 (18)
Derivatives - Liabilities (18)
Total Futures Contracts 48
Total Derivative Instruments at Fair Value 542
Total Investments 253,406 247,397



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

Introduction

The objective of the Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019 (the Fund) in managing risk is the creation and protection of
contractholder value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the Fund's
continuing profitability. The Fund can be exposed to liquidity risk, market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

A. Risk Management
The Fund’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the
securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2023, and groups the securities by asset type, geographic region and/or
market segment. The following sections describe the significant risks that are relevant to the Fund.

To assist with managing risk, The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life or the Company) maintains a governance
structure that oversees the Fund's investment activities and monitors compliance with the Fund's stated investment strategy
and other regulations.

B. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when a fund encounters difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they come due. The Fund is
exposed to liquidity risk due to potential daily cash redemptions of redeemable units by contractholders. The Fund retains
sufficient cash and cash equivalent positions to maintain adequate liquidity to meet the obligation to fund daily cash
redemptions of their redeemable units.

Some securities are illiquid due to legal restrictions on their resale, the nature of the investment, or simply a lack of
interested buyers for a particular security or security type. Certain securities may become less liquid due to changes in
market conditions, such as interest rate changes or market volatility, which could impair the ability of a fund to sell such
securities quickly.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Company monitors the Fund's liquidity positions on a regular basis.

C. Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that financial instruments that are denominated or exchanged in a currency other than the Canadian
dollar, which is the Fund’s reporting currency, will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The classifications used on
the Schedule of Investment Portfolio for the financial instruments are based on the country of issue.



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

Currency Risk (continued)

The table below indicates the foreign currencies to which the Fund had significant exposure as at December 31, 2023 in
Canadian dollar terms, including the underlying principal amount of forward currency contracts, if any. The table also
illustrates the potential impact to the Fund’s net assets attributable to contractholders, all other variables held constant, as a
result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar. In practice, the actual results may differ from this
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant.

2023

Impact on Net
Assets
Attributable to

Cash, Short-term
Deposits and

Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ (1,572) $ 981 $ (591) $ (6)
Other Currencies — (35) (35) —
Total $ (1,572) $ 946  $ (626) $ (6)
As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders (0.2%) —%
*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments
2022
Impact on Net
Cash, Short-term Assets
Deposits and Attributable to
Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ (3,015) $ 3,111 $ 96 $ 1
Other Currencies — (36) (36) —
Total $ (3,015) $ 3,075 $ 60 $ 1

As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders

*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments

—% —%

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments such as bonds. The Fund is exposed to the risk that the
value of interest-bearing financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.
Due to the nature of short-term fixed income securities with a remaining term-to-maturity of less than one year, these
investments are not generally exposed to a significant risk that their value will fluctuate in response to changes in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. The risk is professionally managed at the security and fund level by the Company.

The table below summarizes the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk by remaining term-to-maturity.

2023
Over 1 year Over 5 years
1 year or less to 5 years to 10 years Over 10 years Total
Bonds $ 12,750 $ 66,714 $ 95,529 $ 63,766 $ 238,759
2022
Over 1 year Over 5 years
1 year or less to 5 years to 10 years Over 10 years Total
Bonds $ 3461  $ 68,950 §$ 99,602 $ 68,877 $ 240,890




Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

D. Interest Rate Risk (continued)
As at December 31, 2023, had prevailing interest rates increased or decreased by 1% assuming a parallel shift in the yield
curve, with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to contractholders would have decreased or increased,
respectively, by approximately $16,290 ($17,998 at December 31, 2022) or approximately 6.4% (6.9% at December 31,
2022). The Fund’s sensitivity to interest rate changes was estimated using the weighted average duration of the bond
portfolio. In practice, the actual results may differ and the difference could be significant.

E. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has
entered into with the Fund. The Fund’s greatest concentration of credit risk is in debt securities, such as bonds. The fair
value of debt instruments includes consideration of the creditworthiness of the debt issuer. The carrying amount of debt
instruments represents the maximum credit risk exposure as at December 31, 2023. The amount of credit risk to any one
issuer may be determined from the information reported in the Schedule of Investment Portfolio. The Fund may invest in
short-term fixed income securities issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada or any Canadian provincial
government, obligations of Canadian chartered banks or trust companies, and commercial paper with approved credit
ratings. The risk of default on these short-term fixed income securities is considered low. The Company monitors credit risk
and credit ratings on a regular basis. All new counterparties to financial instruments are subject to an approval process.

There was no change in fair values of financial liabilities as a result of changes in credit risks during 2023 or 2022.
All transactions in listed securities are settled and paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on

a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker.

Credit ratings disclosed below are obtained from independent rating agencies including DBRS, Standard & Poor's, Moody's
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings. The lowest rating provided by the agencies is used.

Debt securities by credit rating are as follows:

2023 2022
Percent of Total Net Percent of Total Net
Percent of Total Assets Attributable to Percent of Total Assets Attributable to
Bonds Contractholders Bonds Contractholders
(%) (%) (%) (%)
AAA 3.0 2.8 4.5 4.2
AA 29.0 27.0 28.3 26.1
A 33.8 315 334 30.9
BBB 26.1 24.3 27.6 25.6
BB and lower 7.8 7.3 5.9 54
NR * 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3
Total 100.0 93.1 100.0 92.5

*Bonds disclosed as NR are mortgage backed securities or privately placed bonds or bonds that have not been rated by a
rating agency.
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(in Canadian $ thousands)

F. Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate, currency or credit risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment,
its issuer, or all factors affecting all instruments traded in a market or market segment. All securities present a risk of loss of
capital. The Fund Manager moderates this risk through careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within
the parameters of the investment strategy. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is equivalent to their fair
value.

For the Fund, the most significant exposure to other price risk arises from its investment in equity securities. As at December
31, 2023, had the prices on the respective stock exchanges for these securities increased or decreased by 1%, with all other
variables held constant, assets would have increased (or decreased) by approximately $81 ($120 at December 31, 2022) or
approximately 0.0% (0.0% at December 31, 2022) of total net assets attributable to contractholders. In practice, the actual
results may differ and the difference could be significant.

G. Fair Value Classification
The following table presents information about the Fund's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Fund to determine such fair value:

2023
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds $ — $ 238,681 $ 78 $ 238,759
Stocks 8,096 — — 8,096
Derivatives 66 728 — 794
Total assets measured at fair value $ 8,162 $ 239,409 $ 78 $ 247,649
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivatives (" $ 18 $ 234§ — 3 252
Net assets attributable to contractholders

measured at fair value $ 8,144 $ 239,175 $ 78 $ 247,397
M Excludes collateral pledged to counterparties of $793.

2022
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds $ — $ 240,805 $ 85 $ 240,890
Stocks 11,971 — — 11,971
Derivatives 121 46 — 167
Total assets measured at fair value $ 12,092 $ 240,851 $ 85 $ 253,028
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivatives (" $ - $ 894 § — 3 894
Net assets attributable to contractholders

measured at fair value $ 12,092 $ 239,957 $ 85 $ 252,134

(" Excludes collateral pledged to counterparties of $1,162.

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2023 or 2022.
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G. Fair Value Classification (continued)
The following table presents additional information about assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and for which
the Fund has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value:

2023 2022
Bonds Bonds
Balance, beginning of year $ 85 $ 32
Total gain (loss) included in net assets from operations attributable to
contractholders (7) (3)
Purchases — 56
Sales — —
Settlements — —
Transfers into Level 3 — —
Transfers out of Level 3 — —
Balance, end of year $ 78 $ 85

Total gain (loss) for the year included in net gain (loss) on
investments for Level 3 assets held at the end of year $ (7) $ (3)
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(in Canadian $, except number of units outstanding)

The following tables show selected key financial information about the Fund and are intended to help users of the financial statements
understand the Fund's financial performance. Portfolio units are allocated to each category as described in note 3 and are not included on this

page.

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders by Category

For the years ended December 31

Number of units outstanding Net asset value (in $ thousands)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Flex 26,636 31,697 36,798 44,770 48,754 4,452 5,082 6,812 8,689 8,884
Generations/Mosaic 792,497 912,192 1,091,352 1,266,721 1,360,049 13,200 14,576 20,133 24,501 24,697
Generations | 206,991 276,131 407,502 487,372 530,807 2,691 3,429 5,818 7,268 7,403
Generations Il 42,355 50,267 67,046 83,239 92,631 519 589 904 1,173 1,221
Generations Core 92,501 123,142 159,672 184,035 201,001 1,155 1,467 2,185 2,629 2,684
75/75 guarantee policy 156,283 215,699 264,166 314,332 366,324 1,798 2,367 3,331 4,137 4,506
75/100 guarantee policy 632,578 767,297 876,954 1,063,871 1,299,716 7,221 8,366 10,992 13,928 15,913
100/100 guarantee policy 58,409 70,106 80,778 85,564 111,908 661 759 1,006 1,114 1,363
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 95,660 119,119 131,480 152,577 194,287 1,071 1,265 1,594 1,917 2,267
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 521,662 628,311 699,416 930,213 1,035,649 5,804 6,635 8,436 11,640 12,038
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 27,599 57,217 77,188 122,203 97,565 302 596 919 1,511 1,122
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 339,598 346,345 353,719 438,500 469,390 4,462 4,258 4,897 6,208 6,085
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 288,903 311,235 392,354 489,303 520,844 3,796 3,827 5,432 6,928 6,752
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 63,765 65,039 72,885 87,172 89,104 836 798 1,007 1,232 1,153
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 64 64 — 158 612 1 1 — 2 6
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 6,491 6,169 6,767 10,542 13,530 65 59 74 119 142
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 6,662 6,702 16,904 43,164 43,442 69 66 188 496 461

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders Per Unit (note 6)

For the years ended December 31

Net asset value per unit (3) Increase (decrease) per unit (3)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022
Flex 167.13 160.41 185.19 194.17 182.29 6.72 (24.78)
Generations/Mosaic 16.66 15.98 18.45 19.34 18.16 0.68 (2.47)
Generations | 13.00 12.42 14.28 14.91 13.95 0.58 (1.86)
Generations Il 12.25 11.72 13.48 14.09 13.18 0.53 (1.76)
Generations Core 12.49 11.92 13.69 14.29 13.35 0.57 (1.77)
75/75 guarantee policy 11.50 10.98 12.61 13.16 12.30 0.52 (1.63)
75/100 guarantee policy 11.42 10.90 12.53 13.09 12.24 0.52 (1.63)
100/100 guarantee policy 11.32 10.82 12.45 13.02 12.18 0.50 (1.63)
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 11.19 10.62 12.12 12.57 11.67 0.57 (1.50)
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 11.13 10.56 12.06 12.51 11.62 0.57 (1.50)
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 10.96 10.41 11.91 12.37 11.50 0.55 (1.50)
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 13.14 12.30 13.84 14.16 12.96 0.84 (1.54)
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 13.14 12.30 13.84 14.16 12.96 0.84 (1.54)
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 13.12 12.27 13.82 14.13 12.94 0.85 (1.55)
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 10.05 9.54 — 11.32 10.52 0.51 (1.36)
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 10.02 9.51 10.88 11.30 10.51 0.51 (1.37)
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 10.39 9.81 11.14 11.49 10.62 0.58 (1.33)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

1. THE FUND
The Fund is offered by The Canada Life Assurance Company.

The Company is the sole issuer of the insurance contracts providing for investment in the Fund. The assets
of the Fund are owned by the Company and are segregated from the other assets of the Company. The
Fund is not a separate legal entity. The Fund invests in a portfolio of assets to generate returns in the form
of investment income and capital appreciation for the contractholders, who are the ultimate beneficiaries of
the Fund. The Fund’s investment activities are overseen by the Company.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco), a publicly listed company
incorporated and domiciled in Canada. Lifeco is a member of the Power Corporation of Canada (Power
Corporation) group of companies and is a subsidiary of Power Corporation.

The Fund’s registered office is at 100 Osborne Street North, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3.

The financial statements of the Fund as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved for
issue by the Company on March 14, 2024.

2, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Uniform
accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements. These accounting
policies are based on the IFRS and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued and
effective at December 31, 2023. The financial statements of the Fund have also been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Part Xl of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association
Guideline G2.

a) Use of Estimates, Significant Accounting Judgments and Assumptions
The preparation of the Fund's financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The valuation of investments is the most significant component of the financial
statements subject to estimates. Although some variability is inherent in these judgments and
assumptions, the Fund believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, the fair value is determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this information is not available,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimates include consideration of liquidity and
model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty's), correlation and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments in the Statement of Financial Position and the level where the financial
instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

The Company is required to make significant judgments in order to determine the most appropriate
classification in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The Company has assessed the
Fund's business model, the manner in which all financial instruments are managed and the
requirements of other accounting standards, and has concluded that fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) provides the most appropriate measurement and presentation of the Fund's financial
instruments.

Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements are required to measure their subsidiaries at FVTPL rather than consolidate them. The
criteria that define an investment entity are as follows:

* An entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those
investors with investment services;

* An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both; and

* An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments
on a fair value basis.

In the judgment of management, the Fund meets the definition of an investment entity. This
conclusion will be reassessed on a periodic basis, if any changes in criteria or circumstances exist.

Fair Value Measurement and Classification
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities have been categorized based upon the following fair
value hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value measurements utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Fund has the ability to access. Assets and liabilities utilizing
Level 1 inputs include equity securities that are actively traded on an exchange, exchange-traded
futures and underlying mutual funds which have available prices in an active market with no
redemption restrictions.

Level 2: Fair value measurements utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a
pricing service. The pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported
trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and
reference data. Level 2 assets and liabilities include those priced using a matrix which is based on
credit quality and average life, and generally include some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed securities, most over-the-
counter derivatives, and mortgage loans.

Level 3: Fair value measurements utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability. The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained from single broker
quotes, internal pricing models, or external appraisers. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs
generally include certain bonds and private investments.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
the categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values of financial instruments are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative
is actively traded and a quoted price is available. If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently
ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such cases, instruments are
reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant
unobservable inputs, in which case it is classified as Level 3. Additional disclosures relating to
transfers between levels and a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances in Level 3 are
included in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio, where applicable.

Level 3 financial instruments are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Company. The Company
considers the appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the valuation result using
various valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry.
The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded in active markets by referring to actively
traded securities with similar attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted
cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models. This methodology considers such factors as
the issuer's industry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate and position in the capital structure of
the issuer, as well as, yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For
bonds that are not traded in active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustments generally are based on available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence,
management's best estimate is used.

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation
methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to increased observability of inputs in
valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing
vendors.

The Fund’s fair value hierarchy classification of its assets and liabilities is included in fair value
measurements in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.

Upon initial recognition, the Fund classifies and measures all financial assets and financial liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position at FVTPL. The financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual requirements of the instrument.
Financial instruments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the instrument
has expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. As such,
investment purchase and sale transactions are recorded as of the trade date. The Fund's policy is
not to apply hedge accounting.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Bonds and Stocks

Bonds and stocks are recorded at fair value determined with reference to closing quoted market
prices, where the last traded price falls within the day's bid-ask spread, primarily provided by third
party independent pricing sources. Fair values are determined on the basis of the closing price for a
security on the recognized exchange on which it is principally traded at each reporting date. In
circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Company
determines the point when the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the
specific facts and circumstances.

The fair value of unlisted securities is established using quotations determined by a major dealer in
a particular security. Should the quoted value for a security, in the opinion of the Fund Manager, be
inaccurate, unreliable, or not readily available, the value of the security is estimated using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the market approach (using recent arm's-length market
transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument
that is substantially the same) and the income approach (discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible).

Cash, Short-term Deposits and Overdrafts

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts are comprised of cash on deposit, short-term deposits
and overdrafts with terms to maturity of less than three months at acquisition. Due to the nature of
these assets being highly liquid and having short terms to maturity, these items are reported at fair
value, which approximates their cost.

Derivatives

Derivatives are classified and measured at fair value. Derivatives are valued using market
transactions and other market evidence whenever possible, including market based inputs to
models, broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of
transparency. When models are used, the selection of a particular model to value a derivative
depends on the contractual terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the instrument, as well as the
availability of pricing information in the market. The Company generally uses similar models to
value similar instruments. Valuation models require a variety of inputs, including contractual terms,
market prices and rates, yield curves, credit curves, measures volatility, prepayment rates and
correlations of such inputs.

Classification of Units Issued by the Fund

The units of the Fund are classified as financial liabilities under IFRS as the Fund is contractually
obligated to repurchase or redeem them for cash or another financial asset when the units are
disposed. The net assets attributable to contractholders are classified as FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

9)

h)

Recognition of Investments and Income
Financial investment purchases and sales are recorded when the Fund becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilites at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value.

The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of investment income earned and
expenses incurred by the Fund.

The following are included in net gain (loss) on investments on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income:

Realized gains (losses) on investments - recorded upon the sale or maturity of an asset
and determined using the average cost basis.

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments - calculated as the in-year change in fair value of
the investment and determined using the average cost basis.

Interest income on debt securities - included in the change in fair value of such investments
and recorded on the accrual basis.

Dividend income - accrued as of the ex-dividend date and recorded on the accrual basis.

After initial measurement, the Fund classifies and measures financial instruments as FVTPL at the
reporting date. Changes in the fair value are recorded in net gain (loss) on investments in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency
The financial statements have been presented in Canadian dollars, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund is domiciled and is the Fund's functional currency.

Foreign currency translations are calculated using the exchange rate in effect when the transaction
occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
functional currency rate of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gains
or losses generated by foreign exchange are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within net gain (loss) on investments.

Miscellaneous income (loss)

Miscellaneous income (loss) generally includes the changes in foreign exchange rates between
trade and settlement dates, foreign exchange rates on bank balances, securities lending income,
derivative income, and management fee rebates.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

)

k)

Amounts Due to/from Broker
Amounts due to brokers are payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for, but
not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due from brokers include margin accounts and receivables for securities sold that have
been contracted for, but not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due to/from brokers are held at fair value which approximates their cost.

Amounts due to/from brokers are settled within a few business days of the reporting date. All
securities are purchased and sold in regular way transactions.

Amounts Due to/from Outside Parties
Amounts due to outside parties are payables to parties other than related parties of the Fund.

Amounts due from outside parties are receivables due from parties other than related parties of the
Fund.

Amounts due to/from outside parties are held at fair value which approximates their cost.

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist primarily of securities handling charges. All these expenses are paid to
third parties. The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of expenses incurred by the
Fund.

Income Allocation

Net gain (loss) on investments, which includes dividend income, interest income, realized gains and
losses and unrealized gains and losses, accrues to each contractholder through the increase
(decrease) of the net asset value (NAV) per unit.

Issue and Redemption of Units

Units attributable to contractholders are redeemable at the contractholders’ option at prices based
on the Fund’s NAV per unit at the time of redemption and are therefore classified as financial
liabilities.

Units are issued and redeemed at their NAV per unit established as noted in the information folder
of the Fund.

The Fund’s obligation for net assets attributable to contractholders is presented at the redemption
amount at the reporting date. The deposits and withdrawals of contractholders are adjusted for
inter-fund transfers.

Transaction Costs
Transaction costs, such as brokerage commissions, incurred in the purchase and sale of securities
by the Fund are charged to expenses in the year.
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3. DESCRIPTION OF UNITS
The capital of the Fund is divided into categories of units.

Individual units are available to individuals for investment in:

* Registered Retirement Savings Plans,

* Registered Savings Plans,

» Tax Free Savings Accounts, and

* Non-Registered Savings Plans through the purchase of an Individual Savings Contract or a Retirement
Income Fund.

Individual units are available under these different options:
* Emperor,

* Flex,

» Generations/Mosaic,

* Generations |,

* Generations I,

» Generations Core,

 Prestige/Prestige Plus, and

» Private Collections.

In addition to the Individual units, units are available for:

» Option S1R 75/75 guarantee policy,

» Option S1HB Preferred Series 1 (PS1) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1HU Preferred Series 2 (PS2) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1RF Partner Series (PS) 75/75 guarantee policy,

* Option S1HF Preferred Partner Series (PPS) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S2R 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S2HB PS1 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2HU PS2 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2RF PS 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S2HF PPS 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3R 100/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3HB PS1 100/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3HU PS2 100/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3RF PS 100/100 guarantee policy, and

* Option S3HF PPS 100/100 guarantee policy.

Portfolio units are those units owned by the Asset Allocation Funds. Each Portfolio fund is represented by
a separate category.

The categories of units, and the various levels within each, are accounted for separately and any increases
or decreases in net assets attributable to contractholders during the year are allocated proportionately to
each category.

4, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has no legal restrictions on the
issue, repurchase or resale of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund’s offering document.
Units are redeemed at the NAV per unit of a Fund on the redemption date. The capital received by a Fund is
utilized within the respective investment mandate of the Fund.
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5. INCOME TAXES

The Fund is deemed to be a trust under the provisions of the Income Tax Act (Canada). Income of a
segregated fund is deemed to be payable to the contractholders and therefore the Fund will not have
taxable income. In addition, capital gains and losses are deemed to be those of the contractholders and not
of the Fund. Realized gains or losses may be reduced by the amount of gains or losses realized by
contractholders on the redemption of their investment. As a result, no provision of income tax is required in
the financial statements of the Fund.

Foreign investment income is subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the income in some
jurisdictions. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of withholding tax deducted at the
source of the income. The Fund presents the withholding tax separately from the net gain (loss) on
investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTRACTHOLDERS PER UNIT
The presentation of unit values is broken down by contractholder category.

Net increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders per unit per category is
calculated by dividing the net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to contractholders from
operations as disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, by the weighted average number of
units of each category outstanding during the year.

7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative contracts, including forward currency, futures and equity swap contracts, are valued at the gain or
loss that would arise as a result of closing the position at the reporting date. Options are recorded at fair
value as at the reporting date. The Fund may use derivative contracts to hedge against losses caused by
changes in securities prices, interest rates, exchange rates and/or other risks. The Fund may also use
derivative contracts for non-hedging purposes in order to invest indirectly in financial markets or to gain
exposure to other currencies, provided the use of such derivatives is consistent with the Fund’s investment
objectives and strategies. Foreign currency risk and exposure may be direct or indirect and can include all
or a portion of the currency exposure of an existing investment or group of investments. Any such gain or
loss on derivative contracts is recorded as part of net gain (loss) on investments.

As at the reporting date, the unrealized gain (loss) on derivative contracts is reflected on the Statement of
Financial Position of the Fund.

The Fund manages derivative credit risk through collateral arrangements where required. The amount and
type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are
implemented by the Fund regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and the valuation parameters.
The Fund Manager monitors the value of the collateral and requests additional collateral when needed.
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lifeco is the parent of the Company as well as a member of the Power Corporation group of companies.
Through this relationship, the Company is related to IGM Financial Inc., a company in the financial services
sector, along with its subsidiaries I.G. Investment Management, Ltd. and Mackenzie Financial Corporation.

The financial statements of the Fund may include transactions with the following related parties to the

Company:

Related party Relationship Incorporated in

Canada Life Investment Management Ltd. Wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company Canada

Setanta Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

Putnam Investments, LLC ") Wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifeco United States

IGM Financial Inc. Subsidiary of Power Corporation Canada

Canada Life Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the United Kingdom
Company

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

" On January 1, 2024, Lifeco completed the sale of Putnam US Holdings I, LLC (excluding PanAgora

a)

b)

c)

Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary PanAgora Asset Management Inc.) to Franklin Resources Inc. Putnam
US Holdings |, LLC was a subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and was the indirect parent company
of Putnam Investments Canada ULC, which managed certain segregated funds for the Company.

The Company provides management, advisory and administrative services to the Fund which
includes the services of key management personnel. In respect of these services, the Fund is
charged management and other fees that are at market terms and conditions. Management and
other fees for Preferred Series 2 categories are charged directly to the contractholder by redeeming
units from their policy. Management fees and other fees charged to other categories are calculated
at set rates applied against the net assets of the specific category at each valuation date.

The amounts shown as “Due from (to) The Canada Life Assurance Company" represent
outstanding management fees, uncleared deposits/withdrawals and investment activity as at the
December 31 valuation dates of the Fund.

The Fund invests in assets or underlying funds managed by Mackenzie Financial Corporation,
which operates as Mackenzie Investments. All investment transactions with the corresponding
underlying funds are at quoted market prices.



Fixed Income Fund (Laketon) SF019

Supplemental Information (unaudited)

The following tables show selected key financial information about the Fund and are intended to help users of the financial statements
understand the Fund's financial performance.

Management Expense Ratio (%)

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Flex 2.49 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Generations/Mosaic 2.49 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Generations | 2.05 2.09 2.1 2.1 2.1
Generations Il 2.16 217 217 217 217
Generations Core 1.94 2.00 2.06 2.06 2.06
75/75 guarantee policy 1.94 2.00 2.06 2.06 2.06
75/100 guarantee policy 2.05 2.08 2.1 2.1 2.1
100/100 guarantee policy 2.16 217 217 217 217
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 1.38 1.38 1.38 1.38 1.38
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 1.43 1.43 1.43 1.43 1.43
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 1.54 1.55 1.55 1.54 1.54
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 1.40 1.44 — 1.50 1.50
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 1.50 1.53 1.57 1.56 1.56
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 0.88 0.90 0.88 0.88 0.88

Portfolio Turnover Rate (%) ?

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Portfolio Turnover Rate 72.20 96.75 91.49 79.49 80.90

(1) The management expense ratio has been calculated as the aggregate of all fees, taxes, charges and other expenses incurred during the year divided by the average daily net asset value of
the segregated fund attributable to the particular fee option. All ratios shown are on an annual basis. In circumstances where the particular fund or fee option did not have twelve months of
exposure, the ratios have been annualized. Management expense ratios are calculated for Individual Customer, Wealth Solutions clients only. No management expense ratio is calculated
for the Preferred Series 2 guarantee policy as such fees are charged directly to the contractholder.

(2) The portfolio turnover rates presented in the financial statements reflects the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Inc. (CLHIA) Guideline G2, Individual Variable Insurance
Contracts Relating to Segregated Funds 12.3(a)(iii). The portfolio turnover rates indicate how actively the portfolio investments have been bought or sold throughout the year. A portfolio
turnover rate of 100% is equivalent to the Fund buying and selling all of the securities in its portfolio once in the course of the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Contractholders of Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029 (the “Fund”)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to contractholders and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS”) and the
requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Guideline G2.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“"Canadian
GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance
Association Guideline G2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.


http://www.deloitte.ca

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

/s/ Deloitte LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
March 14, 2024
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(in Canadian $ thousands)

Fund Manager: Mackenzie Investments

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Cash

Investment income due and
accrued

Due from The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 7)

Due from brokers

Due from outside parties

Investments
Bonds
Stocks

Investment fund units

Total investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Overdrafts

Due to The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 7)

Due to brokers
Due to outside parties
Total liabilities excluding net

assets attributable to
contractholders

Net assets attributable to
contractholders

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended

Income
Net gain (loss) on investments $
Miscellaneous income (loss)

Total income (loss)

Expenses
Management fees (note 7)
Transaction costs
Withholding taxes
Other

Total expenses

Net increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations
attributable to contractholders $

December 31 December 31
2023 2022

29,658 $ 10,334

7 19

29,665 10,353

5,886 3,520

637 387

6,523 3,907

23,142 3 6,446

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable

to Contractholders

December 31 December 31
2023 2022
53,533 54,337
1,329 491
694 —
648,467 483,241
648,467 483,241
704,023 538,069
— 231

— 231
704,023 537,838

For the years ended December 31 December 31
2023 2022
Net assets attributable to
contractholders - beginning
of year $ 537,838 $ 352,541
Contractholder deposits 449,491 524,737
Contractholder withdrawals (306,448) (345,886)
Increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations
attributable to contractholders 23,142 6,446
Change in net assets
attributable to contractholders 166,185 185,297
Net assets attributable to
contractholders - end of year $ 704,023 $ 537,838
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(in Canadian $ thousands)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31

Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to the Following Activities

Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders
Adjustments
Add back amortization of premium (discount)
Realized (gains) losses
Unrealized (gains) losses
Gross proceeds of disposition of investments
Gross payments for the purchase of investments
Change in investment income due and accrued
Change in due from/to The Canada Life Assurance Company
Change in due from/to brokers
Change in due from/to outside parties

Financing Activities
Contractholder deposits
Contractholder withdrawals

Net increase (decrease) in cash and overdrafts
Cash and overdrafts, beginning of year

Cash and overdrafts, end of year

Supplementary cash flow information
Interest income received

2023 2022
$ 23,142 6,446
(19,301) (4,646)
(6) 15
4,419,528 2,942,452
(4,565,447)  (3,119,788)
(838) (67)
(925) (88)
(143,847) (175,676)
449,491 524,737
(306,448) (345,886)
143,043 178,851
(804) 3,175
54,337 51,162
$ 53,533 $ 54,337
$ 9,477 $ 5,623
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Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Canadian Bonds

Municipal Governments
City of Toronto 3.40% 05-21-2024

Total Municipal Governments

Corporate - Non-convertible
407 International Inc. 3.35% 05-16-2024

AIMCo Realty Investors LP 2.266% 06-26-2024
AltaLink LP 3.399% 06-06-2024

Bank of Montreal Floating Rate 03-27-2024
Bank of Montreal Floating Rate 09-19-2024
BCI QuadReal Realty 1.056% 03-12-2024

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce Floating Rate 03-27-2024

lvanhoe Cambridge Il Inc. 2.296% 12-12-2024

Lower Mattagami Energy LP 3.42% 06-20-2024
National Bank of Canada Floating Rate 02-07-2024
National Bank of Canada Floating Rate 10-21-2024
NAV CANADA 0.555% 02-09-2024

OMERS Realty Corp. 2.86% 02-23-2024

OMERS Realty Corp. 3.328% 11-12-2024

Royal Bank of Canada 2.352% 07-02-2024

Royal Bank of Canada 2.609% 11-01-2024

Royal Bank of Canada Floating Rate 03-26-2024

The Bank of Nova Scotia Floating Rate 03-28-2024
The Toronto-Dominion Bank 2.85% 03-08-2024

The Toronto-Dominion Bank Floating Rate 01-31-2025
The Toronto-Dominion Bank Floating Rate 10-18-2024
TMX Group Ltd. 2.997% 12-11-2024

Total Corporate - Non-convertible

Total Canadian Bonds

United States Bonds

Corporate - Non-convertible
Apple Inc. 2.513% 08-19-2024

Athene Global Funding 1.25% 04-09-2024
Athene Global Funding Floating Rate 04-09-2024

No. of Units,

Shares or
Par Value

1,500,000

6,650,000
19,712,000
1,900,000
6,000,000
12,000,000
12,865,000
6,000,000
2,090,000
1,930,000
32,400,000
8,000,000
1,000,000
13,062,000
2,500,000
13,200,000
22,500,000
13,170,000
22,000,000
28,120,000
20,000,000
6,500,000
5,710,000

4,680,000
12,170,000
4,488,000

Average
Cost

1,481

1,481

6,574
19,246
1,875
6,000
12,000
12,561
6,000
2,033
1,903
32,400
8,000
991
12,837
2,452
12,860
21,978
13,170
22,000
27,725
19,990
6,500
5,592

254,687

256,168

4,587
11,975
4,471

Fair
Value

1,488

1,488

6,598
19,406
1,883
6,000
12,000
12,756
6,000
2,035
1,911
32,399
8,000
995
13,021
2,457
12,987
22,014
13,170
21,999
27,981
19,994
6,500
5,596

255,702

257,190

4,601
12,023
4,481



Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value
United States Bonds (continued)
Corporate - Non-convertible (continued)
PACCAR Financial Corp. 0.985% 05-14-2024 5,250,000
PepsiCo Inc. 2.15% 05-06-2024 1,160,000
Total Corporate - Non-convertible
Total United States Bonds
Short Term Notes
Alectra Inc. 5.149% 01-15-2024 1,000,000
Alectra Inc. 5.175% 01-03-2024 3,000,000
Alectra Inc. 5.175% 01-09-2024 3,200,000
AltaLink LP 5.143% 01-02-2024 8,000,000
CDP Financial Inc. 4.985% 06-10-2024 3,200,000
CDP Financial Inc. 5.009% 05-28-2024 8,000,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.09% 06-04-2024 4,320,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.098% 06-04-2024 3,740,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.163% 03-21-2024 2,750,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.221% 01-03-2024 6,750,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.28% 01-25-2024 1,700,000
Central 1 Credit Union 5.281% 01-30-2024 2,100,000
City of Edmonton 5.074% 03-15-2024 1,590,000
City Of Montreal 5.099% 02-29-2024 1,500,000
City Of Montreal 5.102% 02-29-2024 7,650,000
City Of Montreal 5.105% 02-29-2024 2,259,000
City Of Montreal 5.106% 02-29-2024 8,000,000
City Of Montreal 5.142% 02-29-2024 1,290,000
City of Vancouver 5.154% 03-13-2024 5,000,000
City of Vancouver 5.165% 03-04-2024 2,540,000
City of Vancouver 5.221% 02-07-2024 5,000,000
City of Vancouver 5.237% 03-06-2024 5,840,000
City of Vancouver 5.288% 02-01-2024 870,000
Enbridge Pipelines Inc. 5.177% 01-02-2024 12,790,000
Energir Inc. 5.08% 01-04-2024 1,550,000

Energir Inc. 5.089% 01-15-2024 800,000

Average
Cost

5,133
1,143

27,309

27,309

996
2,088
3,187
7,988
3,127
7,810
4,212
3,646
2,715
6,661
1,678
2,072
1,670
1,479
7,552
2,235
7,898
1,273
4,936
2,509
4,934
5,739

859

12,783
1,542
796

Fair
Value

5,167
1,148

27,420

27,420

998
2,998
3,195
7,997
3,129
7,835
4,225
3,658
2,718
6,746
1,694
2,091
1,573
1,487
7,585
2,240
7,932
1,279
4,948
2,517
4,972
5,784

866

12,785
1,549
798
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Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Short Term Notes (continued)
Energir Inc. 5.099% 01-15-2024

Energir Inc. 5.11% 01-08-2024

Energir Inc. 5.11% 01-09-2024

Energir Inc. 5.119% 01-30-2024

Energir Inc. 5.121% 01-22-2024

Energir Inc. 5.123% 01-16-2024

EPCOR Utilities Inc. 5.138% 01-11-2024

First Nations Finance Authority 5.175% 01-25-2024

Greater Toronto Airports Authority 5.187% 01-16-2024
Greater Toronto Airports Authority 5.187% 01-17-2024
HSBC Bank Canada 5.166% 03-22-2024

HSBC Bank Canada 5.186% 03-18-2024

HSBC Bank Canada 5.195% 02-20-2024

HSBC Bank Canada 5.202% 02-29-2024

HSBC Bank Canada 5.312% 01-26-2024

Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. 5.134% 01-17-2024

Intact Financial Corp. 5.128% 01-18-2024

Intact Financial Corp. 5.136% 01-16-2024

Lower Mattagami Energy Ltd. 5.182% 02-08-2024

Lower Mattagami Energy Ltd. 5.188% 01-18-2024
Mercedes-Benz Group AG 5.201% 01-18-2024
Mercedes-Benz Group AG 5.21% 01-16-2024

MUFG Bank Ltd. 5.27% 02-02-2024

MUFG Bank Ltd. 5.339% 01-25-2024

Nestle Capital Canada Ltd. 5.09% 01-25-2024

Nestle Capital Canada Ltd. 5.102% 02-01-2024

Nestle Capital Canada Ltd. 5.11% 01-09-2024

Province of Alberta 4.943% 06-05-2024

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.074% 02-22-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.074% 03-07-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.078% 02-12-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.078% 03-04-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.086% 03-28-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.106% 01-25-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.127% 01-18-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.127% 01-22-2024
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.134% 01-18-2024

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value

1,000,000
2,640,000
930,000
1,880,000
5,800,000
1,200,000
4,090,000
1,730,000
3,210,000
3,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000
10,500,000
5,600,000
8,000,000
8,000,000
1,280,000
1,600,000
1,770,000
3,710,000
1,000,000
4,020,000
5,000,000
12,000,000
4,790,000
7,980,000
4,500,000
4,770,000
2,700,000
5,500,000
5,310,000
10,200,000
8,970,000
3,075,000
1,340,000
1,930,000
1,000,000

Average
Cost

995
2,626
925
1,869
5,772
1,195
4,083
1,723
3,195
2,986
4,941
1,975
10,410
5,627
7,901
7,931
1,276
1,594
1,747
3,680
995
4,001
4,934
11,840
4,753
7,932
4,466
4,660
2,670
5,430
5,244
10,072
8,856
3,038
1,324
1,906
987

Fair
Value

998
2,637
929
1,872
5,781
1,197
4,083
1,724
3,202
2,992
4,941
1,978
10,422
5,651
7,969
7,980
1,277
1,596
1,760
3,700
997
4,010
4,975
11,954
4,773
7,943
4,494
4,668
2,680
5,448
5,277
10,108
8,859
3,064
1,336
1,924
997



Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,

Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value

Short Term Notes (continued)
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 5.158% 01-08-2024 6,200,000 6,126 6,192
Province of Prince Edward Island 5.071% 02-27-2024 9,300,000 9,190 9,224
Province of Prince Edward Island 5.078% 03-05-2024 2,170,000 2,143 2,150
Province of Prince Edward Island 5.078% 03-19-2024 1,500,000 1,481 1,483
Province of Prince Edward Island 5.134% 01-23-2024 1,790,000 1,767 1,784
Province of Prince Edward Island 5.157% 01-09-2024 6,000,000 5,928 5,992
Royal Bank of Canada 5.122% 03-20-2024 9,500,000 9,379 9,392
Sumitomo Mitsui Inc. 5.162% 06-07-2024 12,200,000 11,884 11,924
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd. 5.327% 01-26-2024 7,470,000 7,371 7,441
The Bank of Nova Scotia 5.183% 01-11-2024 2,000,000 1,991 1,997
The Bank of Nova Scotia 5.266% 01-17-2024 11,760,000 11,617 11,729
TMX Group Ltd. 5.103% 01-11-2024 4,720,000 4,688 4,712
TMX Group Ltd. 5.117% 01-23-2024 3,730,000 3,704 3,717
Toronto Hydro Corp. 5.11% 01-03-2024 6,070,000 6,064 6,067
Toyota Credit Canada Inc. 5.039% 08-27-2024 4,630,000 4.461 4,476
Toyota Credit Canada Inc. 5.181% 06-05-2024 3,360,000 3,259 3,285
Toyota Credit Canada Inc. 5.287% 05-01-2024 5,290,000 5,104 5,196
Toyota Credit Canada Inc. 5.325% 05-22-2024 7,560,000 7,267 7,401
Total Short Term Notes 362,068 363,857
Total Bonds 645,545 648,467

Total Investments 645,545 648,467



Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029
Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Introduction

The objective of the Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029 (the Fund) in managing risk is the creation and protection of
contractholder value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the Fund's
continuing profitability. The Fund can be exposed to liquidity risk, market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk Management

The Fund’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the
securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2023, and groups the securities by asset type, geographic region and/or
market segment. The following sections describe the significant risks that are relevant to the Fund.

To assist with managing risk, The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life or the Company) maintains a governance
structure that oversees the Fund's investment activities and monitors compliance with the Fund's stated investment strategy
and other regulations.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises when a fund encounters difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they come due. The Fund is
exposed to liquidity risk due to potential daily cash redemptions of redeemable units by contractholders. The Fund retains
sufficient cash and cash equivalent positions to maintain adequate liquidity to meet the obligation to fund daily cash
redemptions of their redeemable units.

Some securities are illiquid due to legal restrictions on their resale, the nature of the investment, or simply a lack of
interested buyers for a particular security or security type. Certain securities may become less liquid due to changes in
market conditions, such as interest rate changes or market volatility, which could impair the ability of a fund to sell such
securities quickly.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Company monitors the Fund's liquidity positions on a regular basis.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments such as bonds. The Fund is exposed to the risk that the
value of interest-bearing financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.
Due to the nature of short-term fixed income securities with a remaining term-to-maturity of less than one year, these
investments are not generally exposed to a significant risk that their value will fluctuate in response to changes in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. The risk is professionally managed at the security and fund level by the Company.

The table below summarizes the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk by remaining term-to-maturity.

2023
Over 1 year Over 5 years
1 year or less " to 5 years to 10 years Over 10 years Total
Bonds $ 628,473 $ 19,994 $ —  $ —  $ 648,467
2022
Over 1 year Over 5 years
1 year or less (") to 5 years to 10 years Over 10 years Total
Bonds $ 465241  § 18,000 $ — % — 483,241

™ For presentation purposes, short-term notes are included in Bonds on the Statement of Financial Position.
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Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

C.

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, a 1% increase or 1% decrease in the prevailing interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have no impact on the total net assets attributable to contractholders. In practice, the actual results
may differ and the difference could be significant.

Fair Value Classification
The following table presents information about the Fund's assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and indicates
the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Fund to determine such fair value:

2023
Assets Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds $ — $ 648,467 $ — $ 648,467
Total assets measured at fair value $ — % 648,467 $ — $ 648,467

2022

Assets Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds $ — $ 483,241 $ — $ 483,241
Total assets measured at fair value $ — $ 483,241 $ — $ 483,241

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2023 or 2022.
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(in Canadian $, except number of units outstanding)

The following table shows selected key financial information about the Fund and is intended to help users of the financial statements understand
the Fund's financial performance. Portfolio units are allocated to each category as described in note 3 and are not included on this page.

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders by Category

For the years ended December 31

Number of units outstanding Net asset value (in $ thousands)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Emperor — 47 47 47 258 — 4 4 4 22
Flex 60,751 71,135 66,581 79,170 85,013 5,434 6,151 5,701 6,770 7,263
Generations/Mosaic 1,055,009 1,230,283 1,422,769 1,813,655 1,624,424 14,061 15,852 18,155 23,113 20,682
Generations | 358,604 420,781 472,308 723,231 567,680 4,079 4,616 5,126 7,839 6,144
Generations Il 132,983 135,480 181,481 272,829 132,802 1,447 1,422 1,885 2,831 1,376
Generations Core 142,295 214,917 301,532 326,587 420,896 1,551 2,259 3,135 3,392 4,365
Prestige/Prestige Plus — 1,621 81 90 99 — 139 7 8 8
75/75 guarantee policy 10,886,848 7,881,340 4,964,130 5,484,265 2,339,749 116,311 81,202 50,597 55,826 23,783
75/100 guarantee policy 18,381,639 14,444,468 8,975,136 9,781,376 3,556,350 196,302 148,762 91,442 99,527 36,135
100/100 guarantee policy 1,026,766 921,423 705,992 961,229 351,181 10,946 9,476 7,184 9,769 3,564
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 8,656,905 5,371,039 3,038,471 2,427,565 1,173,070 93,666 55,862 31,202 24,896 12,004
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 15,736,887 12,527,349 7,499,375 7,356,986 2,598,186 169,688 129,919 76,817 75,260 26,523
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 788,592 1,094,170 860,287 635,242 505,817 8,452 11,285 8,766 6,465 5,138
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 1,558,703 977,248 762,166 556,767 98,109 18,567 11,078 8,448 6,125 1,067
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 1,767,334 1,547,555 863,613 633,141 410,635 21,070 17,556 9,578 6,965 4,464
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 133,972 193,811 295,531 369,980 559,622 1,591 2,190 3,263 4,050 6,052
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 296,009 340,577 127,638 168,030 174,644 3,189 3,527 1,303 1,711 1,769
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 661,943 830,466 392,629 402,146 42,441 7,131 8,600 4,008 4,095 430
PS 100/100 guarantee policy 107 414 — — 260 1 4 — — 3
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 679,889 387,384 337,075 397,243 8,635 7,378 4,030 3,451 4,056 88
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 693,063 787,068 604,166 665,795 22,160 7,511 8,179 6,181 6,794 225
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 40,513 2 17,216 53,762 — 464 — 176 548 —
75/75 Constellation 6,284 6,343 11,753 13,628 — 67 65 118 137 —
75/100 Constellation 20,541 3,889 3,265 29,926 — 218 40 33 301 —

100/100 Constellation — — 5,417 4,306 — — — 55 43 —
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(in Canadian $, except number of units outstanding)

The following table shows selected key financial information about the Fund and is intended to help users of the financial statements understand
the Fund's financial performance. Portfolio units are allocated to each category as described in note 3 and are not included on this page.

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders Per Unit (note 6)

For the years ended December 31

Net asset value per unit (3) Increase (decrease) per unit (3)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022
Emperor — 87.85 87.18 87.06 86.99 — 0.67
Flex 89.44 86.47 85.63 85.52 85.44 2.97 0.84
Generations/Mosaic 13.33 12.89 12.76 12.74 12.73 0.44 0.13
Generations | 11.37 10.97 10.85 10.84 10.82 0.40 0.12
Generations Il 10.88 10.50 10.39 10.38 10.36 0.38 0.11
Generations Core 10.90 10.51 10.40 10.39 10.37 0.39 0.11
Prestige/Prestige Plus — 85.49 84.93 84.81 84.75 — 0.56
75/75 guarantee policy 10.68 10.30 10.19 10.18 10.16 0.38 0.11
75/100 guarantee policy 10.68 10.30 10.19 10.18 10.16 0.38 0.11
100/100 guarantee policy 10.66 10.28 10.18 10.16 10.15 0.38 0.10
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 10.82 10.40 10.27 10.26 10.23 0.42 0.13
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 10.78 10.37 10.24 10.23 10.21 0.41 0.13
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 10.72 10.31 10.19 10.18 10.16 0.41 0.12
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 11.91 11.34 11.08 11.00 10.88 0.57 0.26
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 11.92 11.34 11.09 11.00 10.87 0.58 0.25
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 11.87 11.30 11.04 10.95 10.81 0.57 0.26
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 10.77 10.36 10.21 10.18 10.13 0.41 0.15
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 10.77 10.36 10.21 10.18 10.13 0.41 0.15
PS 100/100 guarantee policy 10.76 10.34 — — 10.12 0.42 0.14
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 10.85 10.40 10.24 10.21 10.15 0.45 0.16
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 10.84 10.39 10.23 10.20 10.15 0.45 0.16
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 11.45 11.06 10.22 10.19 — 0.39 0.84
75/75 Constellation 10.60 10.20 10.06 10.04 — 0.40 0.14
75/100 Constellation 10.61 10.21 10.07 10.04 — 0.40 0.14

100/100 Constellation — — 10.06 10.04 — — —
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

1. THE FUND

The Fund is offered by The Canada Life Assurance Company.

The Company is the sole issuer of the insurance contracts providing for investment in the Fund. The assets
of the Fund are owned by the Company and are segregated from the other assets of the Company. The
Fund is not a separate legal entity. The Fund invests in a portfolio of assets to generate returns in the form
of investment income and capital appreciation for the contractholders, who are the ultimate beneficiaries of
the Fund. The Fund’s investment activities are overseen by the Company.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco), a publicly listed company
incorporated and domiciled in Canada. Lifeco is a member of the Power Corporation of Canada (Power
Corporation) group of companies and is a subsidiary of Power Corporation.

The Fund’s registered office is at 100 Osborne Street North, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3.

The financial statements of the Fund as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved for
issue by the Company on March 14, 2024.

2, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Uniform
accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements. These accounting
policies are based on the IFRS and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued and
effective at December 31, 2023. The financial statements of the Fund have also been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Part XllI of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association
Guideline G2.

a) Use of Estimates, Significant Accounting Judgments and Assumptions
The preparation of the Fund's financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The valuation of investments is the most significant component of the financial
statements subject to estimates. Although some variability is inherent in these judgments and
assumptions, the Fund believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, the fair value is determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this information is not available,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimates include consideration of liquidity and
model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty's), correlation and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments in the Statement of Financial Position and the level where the financial
instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

The Company is required to make significant judgments in order to determine the most appropriate
classification in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The Company has assessed the
Fund's business model, the manner in which all financial instruments are managed and the
requirements of other accounting standards, and has concluded that fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) provides the most appropriate measurement and presentation of the Fund's financial
instruments.

Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements are required to measure their subsidiaries at FVTPL rather than consolidate them. The
criteria that define an investment entity are as follows:

* An entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those
investors with investment services;

* An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both; and

* An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments
on a fair value basis.

In the judgment of management, the Fund meets the definition of an investment entity. This
conclusion will be reassessed on a periodic basis, if any changes in criteria or circumstances exist.

Fair Value Measurement and Classification

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities have been categorized based upon the following fair
value hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value measurements utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Fund has the ability to access. Assets and liabilities utilizing
Level 1 inputs include equity securities that are actively traded on an exchange, exchange-traded
futures and underlying mutual funds which have available prices in an active market with no
redemption restrictions.

Level 2: Fair value measurements utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a
pricing service. The pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported
trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and
reference data. Level 2 assets and liabilities include those priced using a matrix which is based on
credit quality and average life, and generally include some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed securities, most over-the-
counter derivatives, and mortgage loans.

Level 3: Fair value measurements utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability. The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained from single broker
quotes, internal pricing models, or external appraisers. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs
generally include certain bonds and private investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
the categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values of financial instruments are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative
is actively traded and a quoted price is available. If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently
ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such cases, instruments are
reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant
unobservable inputs, in which case it is classified as Level 3. Additional disclosures relating to
transfers between levels and a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances in Level 3 are
included in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio, where applicable.

Level 3 financial instruments are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Company. The Company
considers the appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the valuation result using
various valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry.
The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded in active markets by referring to actively
traded securities with similar attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted
cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models. This methodology considers such factors as
the issuer's industry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate and position in the capital structure of
the issuer, as well as, yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For
bonds that are not traded in active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustments generally are based on available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence,
management's best estimate is used.

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation
methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to increased observability of inputs in
valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing
vendors.

The Fund’s fair value hierarchy classification of its assets and liabilities is included in fair value
measurements in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.

Upon initial recognition, the Fund classifies and measures all financial assets and financial liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position at FVTPL. The financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual requirements of the instrument.
Financial instruments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the instrument
has expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. As such,
investment purchase and sale transactions are recorded as of the trade date. The Fund's policy is
not to apply hedge accounting.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Bonds

Bonds are recorded at fair value determined with reference to closing quoted market prices, where
the last traded price falls within the day's bid-ask spread, primarily provided by third party
independent pricing sources. Fair values are determined on the basis of the closing price for a
security on the recognized exchange on which it is principally traded at each reporting date. In
circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Company
determines the point when the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the
specific facts and circumstances.

The fair value of unlisted securities is established using quotations determined by a major dealer in
a particular security. Should the quoted value for a security, in the opinion of the Fund Manager, be
inaccurate, unreliable, or not readily available, the value of the security is estimated using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the market approach (using recent arm's-length market
transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument
that is substantially the same) and the income approach (discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible).

Cash and Overdrafts

Cash and overdrafts are comprised of cash on deposit and overdrafts in the bank. Due to the
nature of these assets being highly liquid and having short terms to maturity, these items are
reported at fair value, which approximates their cost.

Classification of Units Issued by the Fund

The units of the Fund are classified as financial liabilities under IFRS as the Fund is contractually
obligated to repurchase or redeem them for cash or another financial asset when the units are
disposed. The net assets attributable to contractholders are classified as FVTPL.

Recognition of Investments and Income
Financial investment purchases and sales are recorded when the Fund becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilites at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value.

The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of investment income earned and
expenses incurred by the Fund.

The following are included in net gain (loss) on investments on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income:

Realized gains (losses) on investments - recorded upon the sale or maturity of an asset
and determined using the average cost basis.

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments - calculated as the in-year change in fair value of
the investment and determined using the average cost basis.

Interest income on debt securities - included in the change in fair value of such investments
and recorded on the accrual basis.
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2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

9)

h)

After initial measurement, the Fund classifies and measures financial instruments as FVTPL at the
reporting date. Changes in the fair value are recorded in net gain (loss) on investments in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency
The financial statements have been presented in Canadian dollars, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund is domiciled and is the Fund's functional currency.

Foreign currency translations are calculated using the exchange rate in effect when the transaction
occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
functional currency rate of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gains
or losses generated by foreign exchange are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within net gain (loss) on investments.

Miscellaneous income (loss)

Miscellaneous income (loss) generally includes the changes in foreign exchange rates between
trade and settlement dates, foreign exchange rates on bank balances, securities lending income,
derivative income, and management fee rebates.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Amounts Due to/from Broker
Amounts due to brokers are payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for, but
not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due from brokers include margin accounts and receivables for securities sold that have
been contracted for, but not yet delivered, on the reporting date.

Amounts due to/from brokers are held at fair value which approximates their cost.

Amounts due to/from brokers are settled within a few business days of the reporting date. All
securities are purchased and sold in regular way transactions.

Amounts Due to/from Outside Parties
Amounts due to outside parties are payables to parties other than related parties of the Fund.

Amounts due from outside parties are receivables due from parties other than related parties of the
Fund.

Amounts due to/from outside parties are held at fair value which approximates their cost.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

k)

m)

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist primarily of securities handling charges. All these expenses are paid to
third parties. The accrual basis of accounting is used to record all types of expenses incurred by the
Fund.

Income Allocation

Net gain (loss) on investments, which includes interest income, realized gains and losses and
unrealized gains and losses, accrues to each contractholder through the increase (decrease) of the
net asset value (NAV) per unit.

Issue and Redemption of Units

Units attributable to contractholders are redeemable at the contractholders’ option at prices based
on the Fund’s NAV per unit at the time of redemption and are therefore classified as financial
liabilities.

Units are issued and redeemed at their NAV per unit established as noted in the information folder
of the Fund.

The Fund’s obligation for net assets attributable to contractholders is presented at the redemption
amount at the reporting date. The deposits and withdrawals of contractholders are adjusted for
inter-fund transfers.

Transaction Costs
Transaction costs, such as brokerage commissions, incurred in the purchase and sale of securities
by the Fund are charged to expenses in the year.
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3. DESCRIPTION OF UNITS
The capital of the Fund is divided into categories of units.

Individual units are available to individuals for investment in:

* Registered Retirement Savings Plans,

* Registered Savings Plans,

» Tax Free Savings Accounts, and

* Non-Registered Savings Plans through the purchase of an Individual Savings Contract or a Retirement
Income Fund.

Individual units are available under these different options:
* Emperor,

* Flex,

» Generations/Mosaic,

* Generations |,

* Generations I,

» Generations Core,

* Prestige/Prestige Plus, and

» Private Collections.

In addition to the Individual units, units are available for:

* Option S1R 75/75 guarantee policy,

» Option S1HB Preferred Series 1 (PS1) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1HU Preferred Series 2 (PS2) 75/75 guarantee policy,
* Option S1RF Partner Series (PS) 75/75 guarantee policy,

* Option S1HF Preferred Partner Series (PPS) 75/75 guarantee policy,
» Option S1C 75/75 Constellation IC Wealth,

* Option S2R 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S2HB PS1 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2HU PS2 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2RF PS 75/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S2HF PPS 75/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S2C 75/75 Constellation IC Wealth,

* Option S3R 100/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3HB PS1 100/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3HU PS2 100/100 guarantee policy,

» Option S3RF PS 100/100 guarantee policy,

* Option S3HF PPS 100/100 guarantee policy, and

» Option S3C 75/75 Constellation IC Wealth.

Portfolio units are those units owned by the Asset Allocation Funds. Each Portfolio fund is represented by
a separate category.

The categories of units, and the various levels within each, are accounted for separately and any increases
or decreases in net assets attributable to contractholders during the year are allocated proportionately to
each category.
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4, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has no legal restrictions on the
issue, repurchase or resale of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund’s offering document.
Units are redeemed at the NAV per unit of a Fund on the redemption date. The capital received by a Fund is
utilized within the respective investment mandate of the Fund.

5. INCOME TAXES

The Fund is deemed to be a trust under the provisions of the Income Tax Act (Canada). Income of a
segregated fund is deemed to be payable to the contractholders and therefore the Fund will not have
taxable income. In addition, capital gains and losses are deemed to be those of the contractholders and not
of the Fund. Realized gains or losses may be reduced by the amount of gains or losses realized by
contractholders on the redemption of their investment. As a result, no provision of income tax is required in
the financial statements of the Fund.

Foreign investment income is subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the income in some
jurisdictions. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of withholding tax deducted at the
source of the income. The Fund presents the withholding tax separately from the net gain (loss) on
investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTRACTHOLDERS PER UNIT
The presentation of unit values is broken down by contractholder category.
Net increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders per unit per category is
calculated by dividing the net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to contractholders from

operations as disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, by the weighted average number of
units of each category outstanding during the year.
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lifeco is the parent of the Company as well as a member of the Power Corporation group of companies.
Through this relationship, the Company is related to IGM Financial Inc., a company in the financial services
sector, along with its subsidiaries I.G. Investment Management, Ltd. and Mackenzie Financial Corporation.

The financial statements of the Fund may include transactions with the following related parties to the

Company:

Related party Relationship Incorporated in

Canada Life Investment Management Ltd. Wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company Canada

Setanta Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

Putnam Investments, LLC ") Wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifeco United States

IGM Financial Inc. Subsidiary of Power Corporation Canada

Canada Life Asset Management Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the United Kingdom
Company

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited Indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Ireland
Company

" On January 1, 2024, Lifeco completed the sale of Putnam US Holdings |, LLC (excluding PanAgora

a)

b)

c)

Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary PanAgora Asset Management Inc.) to Franklin Resources Inc. Putnam
US Holdings |, LLC was a subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC and was the indirect parent company
of Putnam Investments Canada ULC, which managed certain segregated funds for the Company.

The Company provides management, advisory and administrative services to the Fund which
includes the services of key management personnel. In respect of these services, the Fund is
charged management and other fees that are at market terms and conditions. Management and
other fees for Preferred Series 2 categories are charged directly to the contractholder by redeeming
units from their policy. Management fees and other fees charged to other categories are calculated
at set rates applied against the net assets of the specific category at each valuation date.

The amounts shown as “Due from (to) The Canada Life Assurance Company" represent
outstanding management fees, uncleared deposits/withdrawals and investment activity as at the
December 31 valuation dates of the Fund.

The Fund invests in assets or underlying funds managed by Mackenzie Financial Corporation,
which operates as Mackenzie Investments. All investment transactions with the corresponding
underlying funds are at quoted market prices.



Money Market Fund (Laketon) SF029

Supplemental Information (unaudited)

The following table shows selected key financial information about the Fund and is intended to help users of the financial statements understand
the Fund's financial performance.

Management Expense Ratio (%) "

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Emperor — 1.58 0.02 0.92 1.68
Flex 1.56 1.10 0.13 0.71 1.45
Generations/Mosaic 1.56 1.07 0.13 0.70 1.45
Generations | 1.34 0.96 0.13 0.63 1.34
Generations Il 1.39 0.97 0.13 0.63 1.38
Generations Core 1.34 0.95 0.13 0.69 1.33
Prestige/Prestige Plus — 1.58 0.02 0.92 1.68
75/75 guarantee policy 1.32 1.02 0.13 0.57 1.33
75/100 guarantee policy 1.32 1.03 0.13 0.57 1.33
100/100 guarantee policy 1.35 1.02 0.13 0.57 1.38
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 0.99 0.85 0.13 0.52 0.99
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 1.05 0.87 0.13 0.52 1.04
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 1.1 0.88 0.13 0.58 1.10
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 0.99 0.77 — 0.31 0.88
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 0.99 0.73 — 0.14 0.88
PS 100/100 guarantee policy 1.06 0.64 — — 0.95
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 0.71 0.46 — 0.05 0.71
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 0.76 0.52 — 0.11 0.76
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 0.78 0.47 — 0.11 —
75/75 Constellation 1.09 0.54 — 0.24 —
75/100 Constellation 1.14 0.59 — 0.29 —
100/100 Constellation — — — 0.15 —

(1) The management expense ratio has been calculated as the aggregate of all fees, taxes, charges and other expenses incurred during the year divided by the average daily net asset value of
the segregated fund attributable to the particular fee option. All ratios shown are on an annual basis. In circumstances where the particular fund or fee option did not have twelve months of
exposure, the ratios have been annualized. Management expense ratios are calculated for Individual Customer, Wealth Solutions clients only. No management expense ratio is calculated
for the Preferred Series 2 guarantee policy as such fees are charged directly to the contractholder.
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Supplemental Information (unaudited)

The following table shows selected key financial information about the Fund and is intended to help users of the financial statements understand
the Fund's financial performance.

Unsubsidized Management Expense Ratio (%) ("

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Emperor — 2.26 2.39 2.23 2.18
Flex 1.56 1.57 1.56 1.55 1.55
Generations/Mosaic 1.56 1.57 1.56 1.55 1.55
Generations | 1.34 1.35 1.34 1.33 1.34
Generations 1.39 1.40 1.39 1.37 1.38
Generations Core 1.34 1.35 1.34 1.33 1.33
Prestige/Prestige Plus — 2.26 2.39 2.23 2.18
75/75 guarantee policy 1.35 1.34 1.34 1.33 1.33
75/100 guarantee policy 1.35 1.35 1.34 1.33 1.33
100/100 guarantee policy 1.39 1.39 1.39 1.37 1.38
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 0.99 1.00 1.00 0.98 0.99
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 1.05 1.06 1.05 1.04 1.04
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.09 1.10
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 1.07 1.07 1.07 1.06 1.06
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 1.07 1.07 1.07 1.06 1.06
PS 100/100 guarantee policy 1.12 1.12 — — 1.10
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 0.73 0.72 0.72 0.71 0.71
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 0.78 0.78 0.77 0.77 0.76
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 0.83 0.84 0.83 0.82 —
75/75 Constellation 1.18 1.18 1.18 117 —
75/100 Constellation 1.18 1.18 1.18 117 —
100/100 Constellation — — 1.23 1.22 —

(1) The waiving of direct expenses to the segregated funds is done on a discretionary basis to maintain management expense ratios at competitive levels. There is no obligation on the
Company to waive expenses and it may cease to do so at any time. The following waived expenses were part of a one-time event: in 2019, 0.09 percentage points of the waived expenses
for Flex and 0.09 percentage points of the waived expenses for Generations/Mosaic.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Contractholders of Global Equity Fund SF034 (the “Fund”)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to contractholders and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS”) and the
requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association Guideline G2.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“"Canadian
GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of Part XII of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance
Association Guideline G2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.


http://www.deloitte.ca

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

/s/ Deloitte LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
March 14, 2024
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(in Canadian $ thousands)

Fund Manager: Setanta Asset Management Limited

Statement of Financial Position

December 31

December 31

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31

December 31

2023 2022
Income
Net gain (loss) on investments  $ 18,840 $ (10,813)
Miscellaneous income (loss) 79 37
Total income (loss) 18,919 (10,776)
Expenses
Management fees (note 7) 2,767 2,760
Transaction costs 19 29
Withholding taxes 377 348
Other 278 277
Total expenses 3,441 3,414
Net increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations
attributable to contractholders $ 15,478 $ (14,190)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable

to Contractholders

2023 2022
Assets
Cash and short-term deposits $ 3,214 1,975
Investment income due and
accrued 235 125
Due from The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 7) 10 —_
Due from brokers 7 491
Due from outside parties 20 20
Investments
Bonds — —
Stocks 143,182 140,378
Investment fund units — —
Total investments 143,182 140,378
Total assets $ 146,668 142,989
Liabilities
Overdrafts $ — —
Due to The Canada Life
Assurance Company (note 7) — 579
Due to brokers — —_
Due to outside parties — —
Total liabilities excluding net
assets attributable to
contractholders — 579
Net assets attributable to
contractholders $ 146,668 142,410

For the years ended December 31 December 31
2023 2022
Net assets attributable to
contractholders - beginning
of year $ 142,410 $ 155,616
Contractholder deposits 14,638 14,628
Contractholder withdrawals (25,858) (13,644)
Increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations
attributable to contractholders 15,478 (14,190)
Change in net assets
attributable to contractholders 4,258 (13,206)
Net assets attributable to
contractholders - end of year § 146,668 $ 142,410




Global Equity Fund SF034

(in Canadian $ thousands)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to the Following Activities

Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations attributable to contractholders
Adjustments
Realized (gains) losses
Unrealized (gains) losses
Gross proceeds of disposition of investments
Gross payments for the purchase of investments
Change in investment income due and accrued
Change in due from/to The Canada Life Assurance Company
Change in due from/to brokers
Change in due from/to outside parties

Financing Activities
Contractholder deposits
Contractholder withdrawals

Net increase (decrease) in cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts
Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, beginning of year

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts, end of year

Supplementary cash flow information
Dividend income received

2023 2022
15,478 $ (14,190)
(6,056) (2,171)
(8,913) 15,723
29,748 15,534
(17,583) (17,094)
(110) )
(589) 670

484 (491)
12,459 (2,021)
14,638 14,628
(25,858) (13,644)
(11,220) 984
1,239 (1,037)
1,975 3,012
3214 $ 1,975
3,677 $ 2,721



Global Equity Fund SF034
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or Average Fair
Par Value Cost Value

United States Common Stock
Communication Services

Alphabet Inc. Class A 24,705 2,872 4,573

Charter Communications Inc. 1,974 1,391 1,017

Netflix Inc. 1,989 1,188 1,283
Consumer Discretionary

Booking Holdings Inc. 990 2,533 4,652

McDonald's Corp. 7,845 1,727 3,082

Nike Inc. Class B 21,108 2,030 3,037

The Home Depot Inc. 3,256 1,384 1,495
Consumer Staples

Costco Wholesale Corp. 5,232 2,607 4,576

PepsiCo Inc. 4,211 590 948

The Estee Lauder Companies Inc. Class A 5,414 1,597 1,049
Energy

Exxon Mobil Corp. 13,806 1,238 1,829

HF Sinclair Corp. 16,056 761 1,182
Financials

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. Class B 12,133 2,760 5,733

Federated Hermes Inc. 10,292 379 462

Markel Group Inc. 1,127 1,278 2,120

S&P Global Inc. 5,686 2,618 3,319

SEI Investments Co. 28,896 2,222 2,433
Health Care

Johnson & Johnson Inc. 6,283 947 1,305

Pfizer Inc. 4,140 182 158

Quest Diagnostics Inc. 5,102 706 932

Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc. 3,095 1,481 2177

UnitedHealth Group Inc. 3,531 1,104 2,463
Industrials

O-l Glass Inc. 52,503 1,179 1,140

Oshkosh Corp. 17,618 1,284 2,531



Global Equity Fund SF034
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value
United States Common Stock (continued)
Information Technology
DXC Technology Co. 56,773
Electronic Arts Inc. 10,723
Keysight Technologies Inc. 14,177
Microsoft Corp. 13,502
Oracle Corp. 33,129
PayPal Holdings Inc. 10,994
Real Estate
Equinix Inc. REIT 632
Utilities
Exelon Corp. 28,061
NextEra Energy Inc. 24,969
Total United States Common Stock
Global Common Stock
Bermuda
Lancashire Holdings Ltd. 199,114
Cayman Islands
Meituan Class B 2,890
Tencent Holdings Ltd. 31,800
Denmark
Tryg AS 70,236
France
Air Liquide SA 8,360
EssilorLuxottica SA 8,623
Pernod Ricard SA * 4,345
Sanofi SA 11,533
Germany
BASF SE 15,140

*The issuer of this security is a related company to the issuer of the Fund.

Average
Cost

2,669
1,776
1,443
2,111
1,965
1,084

580

1,046

2,309

51,041

2,191

94
2,017

2,106

1,578
1,803

887
1,300

1,334

Fair
Value

1,720
1,944
2,988
6,727
4,627

895

674

1,335

2,010

76,416

2,097

40
1,584

2,024

2,153
2,290
1,015
1,514

1,080



Global Equity Fund SF034
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

Global Common Stock (continued)

Ireland
Bank of Ireland Group PLC

C&C Group PLC

CRH PLC

DCC PLC

Johnson Controls International PLC
Kerry Group PLC Class A
Medtronic Co. PLC

Mincon Group PLC

Ryanair Holdings PLC ADR

Steris PLC

Isle Of Man
Playtech PLC

Israel
Bank Leumi Le-Israel

Italy
Eni SPA

Terna SPA

Japan
Alfresa Holdings Corp.

Astellas Pharma Inc.

Jersey
Ferguson PLC

Luxembourg
Tenaris SA

Netherlands
Heineken Holdings NV

Portugal
Redes Energeticas Nacionais SGPS SA

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value

96,503
228,559
28,390
30,799
19,673
10,074
11,742
587,730
7,785
7,904

254,529

154,377

55,462
134,234

36,661
51,100

9,079

57,130

13,184

101,913

Average
Cost

468
953
1,152
2,623
1,087
1,177
1,407
719
998
1,435

1,981

1,166

1,187
1,018

929
930

1,809

873

1,586

372

Fair
Value

1,160

589
2,592
3,003
1,495
1,159
1,282

550
1,376
2,302

1,927

1,645

1,245
1,483

825
809

2,323

1,315

1,477

346



Global Equity Fund SF034
Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands, except number of units, shares or par value)

As at December 31, 2023

No. of Units,
Shares or
Par Value
Global Common Stock (continued)
South Korea
Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd. 53,671
SK Square Co. Ltd. 5,373
SK Telecom Co. Ltd. 9,625
Spain
Viscofan SA 18,716
Sweden
Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson 184,913
Switzerland
Alcon Inc. 16,754
Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA 5,878
Nestle SA 9,048
Novartis AG 9,455
Sonova Holding AG 2,323
Taiwan
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. Ltd. ADR 16,838
United Kingdom
Dowlais Group PLC 263,126
Melrose Industries PLC 263,126
National Grid PLC 110,945
Smiths Group PLC 40,369
Unilever PLC 15,756

Total Global Common Stock

Total Stocks

Transaction Costs (note 2)

Total Investments

Average Fair
Cost Value
2,900 4,315
263 289
562 494
1,365 1,467
1,800 1,533
1,386 1,732
587 1,071
1,334 1,389
1,036 1,264
815 1,004
921 2,320
643 475
2,178 2,520
1,697 1,981
871 1,202
1,000 1,010
56,538 66,766

107,579 143,182

(112)

107,467 143,182



Global Equity Fund SF034

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

Introduction

The objective of the Global Equity Fund SF034 (the Fund) in managing risk is the creation and protection of contractholder value.
Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the Fund's continuing
profitability. The Fund can be exposed to liquidity risk, market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk) and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

A. Risk Management
The Fund’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the
securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2023, and groups the securities by asset type, geographic region and/or
market segment. The following sections describe the significant risks that are relevant to the Fund.

To assist with managing risk, The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life or the Company) maintains a governance
structure that oversees the Fund's investment activities and monitors compliance with the Fund's stated investment strategy
and other regulations.

B. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when a fund encounters difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they come due. The Fund is
exposed to liquidity risk due to potential daily cash redemptions of redeemable units by contractholders. The Fund retains
sufficient cash and cash equivalent positions to maintain adequate liquidity to meet the obligation to fund daily cash
redemptions of their redeemable units.

Some securities are illiquid due to legal restrictions on their resale, the nature of the investment, or simply a lack of
interested buyers for a particular security or security type. Certain securities may become less liquid due to changes in
market conditions, such as interest rate changes or market volatility, which could impair the ability of a fund to sell such
securities quickly.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Company monitors the Fund's liquidity positions on a regular basis.

C. Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that financial instruments that are denominated or exchanged in a currency other than the Canadian
dollar, which is the Fund’s reporting currency, will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The classifications used on
the Schedule of Investment Portfolio for the financial instruments are based on the country of issue.



Global Equity Fund SF034

Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio
(in Canadian $ thousands)

C. Currency Risk (continued)
The table below indicates the foreign currencies to which the Fund had significant exposure as at December 31, 2023 in
Canadian dollar terms, including the underlying principal amount of forward currency contracts, if any. The table also
illustrates the potential impact to the Fund’s net assets attributable to contractholders, all other variables held constant, as a
result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar. In practice, the actual results may differ from this
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant.

2023
Impact on Net
Cash, Short-term Assets
Deposits and Attributable to
Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ 87,514 $ 5 $ 87,519 $ 875
Euro 19,264 28 19,292 193
United Kingdom Pound Sterling 16,386 — 16,386 164
Other Currencies 20,018 — 20,018 200
Total $ 143,182 § 33 $ 143,215 $ 1,432
As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders 97.6% 1.0%
*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments
2022
Impact on Net
Cash, Short-term Assets
Deposits and Attributable to
Currency Investments Overdrafts Total* Contractholders
United States Dollar $ 83,173 % 17  $ 83,190 $ 832
Euro 23,368 1 23,369 234
United Kingdom Pound Sterling 14,607 — 14,607 146
Other Currencies 19,230 — 19,230 192
Total $ 140,378  $ 18 §$ 140,396 $ 1,404
As Percent of Net Assets
Attributable to Contractholders 98.6% 1.0%

*Includes both monetary and non-monetary instruments

D. Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate, currency or credit risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment,
its issuer, or all factors affecting all instruments traded in a market or market segment. All securities present a risk of loss of
capital. The Fund Manager moderates this risk through careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within
the parameters of the investment strategy. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is equivalent to their fair
value.

For the Fund, the most significant exposure to other price risk arises from its investment in equity securities. As at December
31, 2023, had the prices on the respective stock exchanges for these securities increased or decreased by 1%, with all other
variables held constant, assets would have increased (or decreased) by approximately $1,432 ($1,404 at December 31,
2022) or approximately 1.0% (1.0% at December 31, 2022) of total net assets attributable to contractholders. In practice, the
actual results may differ and the difference could be significant.



Global Equity Fund SF034
Notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in Canadian $ thousands)

E. Fair Value Classification
The following table presents information about the Fund's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Fund to determine such fair value:

2023
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Stocks $ 136,439 $ 6,743 $ — $ 143,182
Total assets measured at fair value $ 136,439 $ 6,743 $ — $ 143,182

2022

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Stocks $ 134,649 $ 5,729 $ — $ 140,378
Total assets measured at fair value $ 134,649 $ 5,729 $ — $ 140,378

In accordance with the Fund’s valuation policy, the Fund applies fair value adjustment factors to the quoted market prices for
certain non-North American equities when North American intraday stock market movements exceed predetermined
tolerances. The adjustment factors are applied in order to estimate the impact on fair values of events occurring between the
close of the non-North American stock markets and the close of business for the Fund. If fair value adjustment factors are
applied, non-North American equities are classified as Level 2. Consequently, non-North American equities are frequently
transferred between Level 1 (unadjusted quoted market prices) and Level 2 (adjusted market prices). As at December 31,
2023, these securities were classified as Level 2 (Level 2 at December 31, 2022).
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(in Canadian $, except number of units outstanding)

The following tables show selected key financial information about the Fund and are intended to help users of the financial statements
understand the Fund's financial performance. Portfolio units are allocated to each category as described in note 3 and are not included on this

page.

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders by Category

For the years ended December 31

Number of units outstanding Net asset value (in $ thousands)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Flex 105,991 119,139 129,816 141,543 165,006 13,784 14,039 16,966 15685 18,275
Generations/Mosaic 632,776 701,297 897,924 897,494 1,125,119 9,901 9,943 14,119 11,966 14,993
Generations | 101,650 105,921 114,873 108,917 207,739 2,469 2,329 2,798 2,247 4,279
Generations |1 31,132 38,138 39,663 42,225 46,737 672 747 863 780 864
Generations Core 59,600 67,903 73,627 79,452 112,254 1,383 1,424 1,707 1,558 2,194
75/75 guarantee policy 427,201 442,872 470,394 468,423 451,750 12,638 11,839 13,908 11,711 11,257
75/100 guarantee policy 938,568 972,798 1,029,224 949,863 931,180 27,024 25351 29,714 23,226 22,733
100/100 guarantee policy 66,045 67,675 67,012 80,262 95,997 1,834 1,705 1,876 1,908 2,285
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 324,213 308,704 306,032 260,494 190,421 9,627 8,245 8,999 6,447 4,676
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 820,812 791,725 818,849 670,071 601,240 23,497 20,454 23,368 16,148 14,424
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 34,275 30,134 32,545 15,703 7,789 934 744 891 364 181
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 167,476 361,840 174,952 104,854 68,173 6,544 12,422 6,458 3,182 2,005
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 173,474 174,685 174,685 142,920 140,970 6,780 5,998 6,449 4,338 4,146
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 1,385 1,233 165 — 5,179 54 42 6 — 152
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 147,868 134,677 120,751 67,496 24,637 1,929 1,570 1,540 720 259
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 181,925 193,177 136,223 81,706 31,119 2,352 2,235 1,727 868 326
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 217,865 178,669 178,462 20,274 22,005 2,914 2,126 2,312 219 233
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 234,958 255,596 249,933 136,729 118,046 3,086 2,997 3,202 1,463 1,244
PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 14,378 21,078 21,258 356 27,547 185 243 269 4 289

Net Assets Attributable to Contractholders Per Unit (note 6)

For the years ended December 31

Net asset value per unit (3) Increase (decrease) per unit ($)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2023 2022
Flex 130.05 117.84 130.69 110.81 110.76 12.21 (12.85)
Generations/Mosaic 15.65 14.18 15.72 13.33 13.33 1.47 (1.54)
Generations | 24.29 21.99 24.36 20.63 20.60 2.30 (2.37)
Generations Il 21.58 19.58 21.75 18.48 18.50 2.00 (2.17)
Generations Core 23.20 20.96 23.19 19.61 19.54 2.24 (2.23)
75/75 guarantee policy 29.58 26.73 29.57 25.00 24.92 2.85 (2.84)
75/100 guarantee policy 28.79 26.06 28.87 24.45 24.41 2.73 (2.81)
100/100 guarantee policy 27.76 25.20 27.99 23.77 23.80 2.56 (2.79)
PS1 75/75 guarantee policy 29.69 26.71 29.40 24.75 24.56 2.98 (2.69)
PS1 75/100 guarantee policy 28.63 25.84 28.54 24.10 23.99 2.79 (2.70)
PS1 100/100 guarantee policy 27.24 24.68 27.37 23.20 23.18 2.56 (2.69)
PS2 75/75 guarantee policy 39.08 34.33 36.91 30.35 29.41 4.75 (2.58)
PS2 75/100 guarantee policy 39.08 34.34 36.92 30.35 29.41 4.74 (2.58)
PS2 100/100 guarantee policy 39.06 34.32 36.90 — 29.40 4.74 (2.58)
PS 75/75 guarantee policy 13.04 11.66 12.75 10.67 10.52 1.38 (1.09)
PS 75/100 guarantee policy 12.93 11.57 12.68 10.62 10.49 1.36 (1.11)
PPS 75/75 guarantee policy 13.37 11.90 12.96 10.79 10.59 1.47 (1.06)
PPS 75/100 guarantee policy 13.14 11.72 12.81 10.70 10.54 1.42 (1.09)

PPS 100/100 guarantee policy 12.86 11.53 12.64 10.60 10.48 1.33 (1.11)



Global Equity Fund SF034

Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

1. THE FUND

The Fund is offered by The Canada Life Assurance Company.

The Company is the sole issuer of the insurance contracts providing for investment in the Fund. The assets
of the Fund are owned by the Company and are segregated from the other assets of the Company. The
Fund is not a separate legal entity. The Fund invests in a portfolio of assets to generate returns in the form
of investment income and capital appreciation for the contractholders, who are the ultimate beneficiaries of
the Fund. The Fund’s investment activities are overseen by the Company.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco), a publicly listed company
incorporated and domiciled in Canada. Lifeco is a member of the Power Corporation of Canada (Power
Corporation) group of companies and is a subsidiary of Power Corporation.

The Fund’s registered office is at 100 Osborne Street North, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3.

The financial statements of the Fund as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved for
issue by the Company on March 14, 2024.

2, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Uniform
accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements. These accounting
policies are based on the IFRS and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued and
effective at December 31, 2023. The financial statements of the Fund have also been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Part XllI of the Canadian Life and Health Insurance Association
Guideline G2.

a) Use of Estimates, Significant Accounting Judgments and Assumptions
The preparation of the Fund's financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The valuation of investments is the most significant component of the financial
statements subject to estimates. Although some variability is inherent in these judgments and
assumptions, the Fund believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, the fair value is determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this information is not available,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimates include consideration of liquidity and
model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty's), correlation and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments in the Statement of Financial Position and the level where the financial
instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.



Global Equity Fund SF034

Notes to the Financial Statements
(in Canadian $ thousands)

2,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

The Company is required to make significant judgments in order to determine the most appropriate
classification in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The Company has assessed the
Fund's business model, the manner in which all financial instruments are managed and the
requirements of other accounting standards, and has concluded that fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) provides the most appropriate measurement and presentation of the Fund's financial
instruments.

Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements are required to measure their subsidiaries at FVTPL rather than consolidate them. The
criteria that define an investment entity are as follows:

* An entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those
investors with investment services;

* An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both; and

* An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments
on a fair value basis.

In the judgment of management, the Fund meets the definition of an investment entity. This
conclusion will be reassessed on a periodic basis, if any changes in criteria or circumstances exist.

Fair Value Measurement and Classification
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities have been categorized based upon the following fair
value hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value measurements utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Fund has the ability to access. Assets and liabilities utilizing
Level 1 inputs include equity securities that are actively traded on an exchange, exchange-traded
futures and underlying mutual funds which have available prices in an active market with no
redemption restrictions.

Level 2: Fair value measurements utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a
pricing service. The pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported
trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and
reference data. Level 2 assets and liabilities include those priced using a matrix which is based on
credit quality and average life, and generally include some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed securities, most over-the-
counter derivatives, and mortgage loans.

Level 3: Fair value measurements utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability. The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained from single broker
quotes, internal pricing models, or external appraisers. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs
generally include certain bonds and private investments.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
the categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values of financial instruments are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative
is actively traded and a quoted price is available. If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently
ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such cases, instruments are
reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant
unobservable inputs, in which case it is classified as Level 3. Additional disclosures relating to
transfers between levels and a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances in Level 3 are
included in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio, where applicable.

Level 3 financial instruments are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Company. The Company
considers the appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the valuation result using
various valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry.
The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded in active markets by referring to actively
traded securities with similar attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted
cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models. This methodology considers such factors as
the issuer's industry, the security's rating, term, coupon rate and position in the capital structure of
the issuer, as well as, yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors. For
bonds that are not traded in active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustments generally are based on available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence,
management's best estimate is used.

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation
methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to increased observability of inputs in
valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple pricing
vendors.

The Fund’s fair value hierarchy classification of its assets and liabilities is included in fair value
measurements in the notes to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.

Upon initial recognition, the Fund classifies and measures all financial assets and financial liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position at FVTPL. The financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual requirements of the instrument.
Financial instruments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the instrument
has expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. As such,
investment purchase and sale transactions are recorded as of the trade date. The Fund's policy is
not to apply hedge accounting.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

Stocks

Stocks are recorded at fair value determined with reference to closing quoted market prices, where
the last traded price falls within the day's bid-ask spread, primarily provided by third party
independent pricing sources. Fair values are determined on the basis of the closing price for a
security on the recognized exchange on which it is principally traded at each reporting date. In
circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Company
determines the point when the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the
specific facts and circumstances.

The fair value of unlisted securities is established using quotations determined by a major dealer in
a particular security. Should the quoted value for a security, in the opinion of the Fund Manager, be
inaccurate, unreliable, or not readily available, the value of the security is estimated using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the market approach (using recent arm's-length market
transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument
that is substantially the same) and the income approach (discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible).

Cash, Short-term Deposits and Overdrafts

Cash, short-term deposits and overdrafts are comprised of cash on deposit, short-term deposits
and overdrafts with terms to maturity of less than three months at acquisition. Due to the nature of
these assets being highly liquid and having 